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FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Stakeholders,

I welcome to all on the 29th Annual General Meeting of FCS Software Solutions Limited. 
We have completed 29 years since incorporation. Despite all ups and downs, we continue 
to serve the purpose with same vigor as when we started. It is a pleasure to connect with 
all of you, although this time again we meet virtually. On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
FCS Software Solutions Limited, I want to thank you for taking the time out to join us. Your 
support and confidence in us, even in uncertain times like COVID-19 Pandemic, drive us to 
look for more ways to do more, and create greater value. 

We assure everyone that we will continue to stay abreast of all new developments. 
I believe that longevity is not an end in itself but an opportunity for your company to make a 
sustainable impact on society by aligning the interest of the organizations with those of all 
our stakeholders. 

As ever, we remain indebted to the generous guidance and support of our partners, clients, 
co-founders and governments of the several countries and states that we operate in and our 
shareholders who join us in looking forward to a brighter future. And I am grateful to you, our 
shareholders, for your continued trust in us.

I would like to cordially invite to all the shareholders of the Company to attend the 
29th Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) on 3rd Day of August, 2022 at 11.30 
A.M through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

	 Sd/-
	 Dalip Kumar
	 Chairman & Managing Director

Date: 07/07/2022
Place: Noida
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s FCS SOFTWARE 
SOLUTIONS LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, 3rd Day of August, 2022 at 11.30 AM through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon, and, in this regard, to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and 
the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members be and are hereby 
received, considered and adopted”.

2.	 To appoint Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh, Non-executive Director of the Company (DIN: 08201381), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment and in this connection to pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Mahendra Pratap Singh (DIN: 08201381) who retires by rotation as a Director at this Annual General 
Meeting, and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as 
Non-executive director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3.	 To appoint M/s SPMG & Company, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor and authorise the Board 
to fix their remuneration and in this regard pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and any other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification, amendment or enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s SPMG & 
Company, (Firm Registration No. 509249C), Chartered Accountants, be and are hereby appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) years to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 34th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027, 
in place of M/s. Aadit Sanyam & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 23685N), 
at such remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses and other expenses as may be mutually agreed 
between the Board of Directors of the Company and M/s SPMG & Company, Chartered Accountants as 
the Statutory Auditor of the Company.		

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 
do and perform all such acts, matters, deeds and things, as may be necessary, to amend the terms and 
conditions of appointment, if necessary, and to act in its own discretion, including the power to delegate, 
to give effect to this resolution.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, be and is hereby 
authorized, to do all such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be necessary or desirable to give effect 
to this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 Regularisation of appointment of Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) as non-executive 
Independent Director of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) who was appointed as an Additional Director 
in the capacity of a non executive Independent director with effect from 6th May, 2022 by the Board of 
Directors and who holds office up to the date of this  upcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company 
in terms of Regulation 17(1C) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received notice in 
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of Director, 
be and is hereby appointed as non-executive Independent Director of the Company for a period of five 
years commencing from 6th May, 2022.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule 
IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and applicable provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, Ms. Archana Sharma 
(DIN: 08300527), who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 
Regulations, as amended, and who is eligible for appointment as a Non-Executive Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. 6th May, 2022 
to 5th May, 2027 (both days inclusive), be and is hereby approved.”

5.	 Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) as non-executive 
Independent Director of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) who was appointed as an Additional 
Director in the capacity of a non executive Independent director with effect from 7th July, 2022 by the 
Board of Directors and who holds office up to the date of this upcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Company in terms of Regulation 17(1C) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has 
received notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as non-executive Independent Director of the Company for 
a period of five years commencing from 7th July, 2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 read with 
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and applicable provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, 
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Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria 
for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and rules framed thereunder and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, and who is eligible for appointment as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years w.e.f. 7th July, 2022 to 6th July, 2027 (both days inclusive), be and is hereby approved.”

6.	 To approve remuneration to Mr. Dalip Kumar, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company for 
his remaining term

	 To consider and approve the payment of remuneration to Mr. Dalip Kumar, Chairman & Managing 
Director of the Company and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203, and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) read with Schedule V of the Act, and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and subject to such 
other approvals as may be required, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), and pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the members of the Company, 
be and is hereby accorded for payment of maximum Remuneration to Mr. Dalip Kumar (DIN: 00103292), 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company including the remuneration to be paid in the event of loss 
or inadequacy of profits in any financial year.

a)	 Salary: upto Rs. 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakhs only) per month;
b)	 Commission: upto 3% of the net profits calculated in the manner laid down under Section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013;
c)	 Benefits, perquisites & Allowances: As may be determined by the Board from time to time;
d)	 Gratuity, Leave Encashment & Provident Fund: As per the policies of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through its notification dated 12 
September 2018 under notified provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (Amendment Act, 
2017) amended Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 and also amends Part I and Part II related to 
conditions to be fulfilled for the  Appointments and Remuneration of a Managing or Whole-time director 
or a Manager without the approval of the Central Government but by the approval of members in the 
general meeting via special resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate during 
the aforesaid tenure, the managerial remuneration aforesaid consisting of salary, perquisites, allowance, 
amenities and performance based incentive shall be paid to Mr. Dalip Kumar (DIN: 00103292), Chairman 
& Managing Director of the Company, as the minimum remuneration as per applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) 
and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

7.	 Consider and approve remuneration of Mr. Sunil Sharma, Executive Director of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), if any, the following Resolution as 
Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Section 197 read with Schedule V and Article of Association of the Company 
as amended from time to time and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
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the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014, (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), consent of the shareholders 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of maximum remuneration upto Rs. 12,00,000 
(Rupees Twelve Lakhs) annually to Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN: 05359128) by way of salary, perquisites and 
allowances as may be mutually agreed between Board of Directors and Mr. Sunil Sharma, with liberty 
to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said remuneration as it may 
deem fit and as may be accepted” 

	 By order of the Board of Directors
	 For FCS Software Solutions Limited

	 Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Company Secretary)

NOTES:

1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) setting out 
material facts relating to the business stated under Item No. 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 is annexed hereto and forms 
part of this notice.

2.	 In view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) has vide its circular dated General Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 read with Circular 
No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and latest Circular No. 2/2022 
(“MCA Circulars”) dated May 05, 2022 and Circular No. SEBI / HO / CFD / CMD1 / CIR / P / 2020 / 79 
dated May 12, 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”), physical 
attendance of the Members to the EGM / AGM venue is not required and Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) during the calendar 
year 2022. The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to adopt the above guidelines issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI in conducting Annual General Meeting of the Company. Hence, 
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM, which 
may not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The facility of casting votes by a 
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM is provided by our 
RTA i.e. Link Intime India Private Limited.

3.	 ONLY A MEMBER IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM THOUGH VC/OAVM. IN TERMS 
OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62, DATED 
MAY 13, 2022, THE REQUIREMENT OF SENDING PROXY FORMS TO HOLDERS OF SECURITIES 
AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE ACT READ WITH REGULATON 44(4) OF THE 
LISTING REGULATONS, HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. Accordingly, the facility for appointment 
of proxies will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are 
not annexed to this Notice.

4.	 Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send 
certified copy of (PDF/JPG Format) Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization letter, authorizing 
its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and vote.

5.	 Copies of Notice of 29th Annual General Meeting together with the Annual Report 2021-22 are being 
sent by electronic mode to all Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company or 
CDSL / NSDL (“Depositories”). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for the financial 
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year 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s Website at www.fcsltd.com, Website of the 
Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
at www.nseindia.com.

6.	 As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, “Listing Obligation”, as amended, Securities of Listed Companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect form April, 2019, further transmission or transposition of securities held 
in physical or dematerialised form shall be effected only in dematerialised form with effect from 24th 
January, 2022. In view of this and to eliminate all risk associated with physical shares and for ease of 
portfolio management, member holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting 
their holding to dematerialized form.

7.	 Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

8.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

9.	 Details as per the Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment /re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting is appended to the Notice.

10.	The Members can join the AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement 
of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

11.	Members are requested to send their queries atleast 3 days before the date of meeting so that information 
can be made available at the meeting.

12.	The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Thursday, 28th July, 2022 to Wednesday, 3rd August, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 
Meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKER REGISTRATION AND TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS 
WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL REPORT:

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending a request in the below given form from their Registered Email ID to agm2022@
fcsltd.com till Saturday, July 30, 2022. Only those member who have registered themselves as a Speaker 
will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM.

SPEAKER REGISTRATION FORM *

Name of Shareholder (including 
joint holder)
DPID-CLID / Folio Number

Permanent Account Number 
(PAN)
Mobile Number
Professional Query in brief

* All fields are mandatory

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate 
for smooth conduct of the AGM.
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Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
agm2022@fcsltd.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. 

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in  

▶	 Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 
A.	 Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No
•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 

ID
•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit Client ID
•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with 

the Company 
B.	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their 

PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, 
if applicable. 

C.	 Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 
D.	 Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 
▶	 Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the 

meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the 
same on the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully 
and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the 
dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMEET website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet:

1.	 Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days before the 
date of AGM with the company on the agm2022@fcsltd.com created for the general meeting. 

2.	 Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the 
client. 

3.	 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.
4.	 Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.
5.	 Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on 

video mode and audio of your device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the 
name and serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet:
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Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ 
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1.	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”
2.	 Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’. 
3.	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 

Against” for voting. 
4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of 

shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.
5.	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 

on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else 
to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. 

6.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members 
who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ 
participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 
during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is 
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

InstaMeet Support Desk

Link Intime India Private Limited

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET, 
shareholders/ members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install 
the Webex application in advance by following the instructions as under:

a)	 Please download and install the Webex  application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/
downloads.html/  
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Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 
1 (A) If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking 

on Join Now 
1 (B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add 

Webex to chrome or Run a temporary application. 
Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to 
run the application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

or 
b)	 If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by 

following the process mentioned as under: 
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Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
can register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from 
their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1.	 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.
com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2.	 If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at  https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected 
to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2.	 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL
1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password. 

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.
cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu 
will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will 
be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration. 

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number 
and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. 
Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	 Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants
	 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 

Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see 
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e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual 
Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
	 Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual 
Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for 
e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1.	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
2.	 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: - 

A.	 User ID: 
	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with 

the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 
followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 
Digit Beneficiary ID. 

B.	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated 
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to 
you, if applicable. 

C.	 DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / 
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D.	 Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/
Company. 

*	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide 
their Folio number in ‘D’ above

*	 Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

	 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least 
one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter). 

	 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

3.	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

4.	 Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’. 

Cast your vote electronically:

1.	 After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 
2.	 E-voting page will appear. 
3.	 Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ 

(If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 
4.	 After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and 
accordingly modify your vote. 
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his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
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Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log 
on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian 
/ Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the 
board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for 
the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional 
shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending 
a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 22- 23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password: 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or 
Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting 
website of Link Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

o	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 
o	 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. 
as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No 
+ Folio Number registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the 
password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.
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	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. 

	 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

	 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted 
on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

General

(A)	 The voting period begins on 31st July, 2022 (9:00 am) and ends on 2nd August, 2022 (5:00 pm). During 
this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut- off date i.e. 27th July, 2022, may cast their votes.

(B)	  Shareholders may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime 
India Private Limited for voting thereafter.

(C)	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the Company after dispatch 
of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 27th July, 2022 may follow the same 
instructions as mentioned above for e-voting.

(D)	 Mr. Neeraj Arora, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 10781) has been appointed as 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(E)	 The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 27th July, 2022.

By order of the Board of Directors
   							       For FCS Software Solutions Limited

	 Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Company Secretary)
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ REAPPOINTMENT AS PER 
REGULATION 36 OF LISTING REGULATIONS WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE:

Name Of Director Mr.  Mahendra Pratap Singh (DIN: 08201381)
Date of Birth 15/12/1961, 61 Years
Category/Designation Non - Executive Director
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on the Board 14/08/2018
Expertise in specific functional area More than 34 years of experience in the field of 

legal consultancy
Other Directorship in the Other Listed Companies NIL
Committee position in other Listed entities NIL

Name Of Director Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527)
Date of Birth 01/08/1968, 53 Years
Category/Designation Independent Director (Non – Executive)
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on the Board 06/05/2022
Expertise in specific functional area More than 11 years of experience in the field of 

teaching
Other Directorship in the Other Listed Companies NIL
Committee position in other Listed entities NIL
Skill & Capabilities required for the role Ms. Archana Sharma is post Graduate and having 

past Directorship Experience in listed company. 

Name Of Director Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983)
Date of Birth 04/05/1964, 58 Years
Category/Designation Independent Director (Non – Executive)
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on the Board 07/07/2022
Expertise in specific functional area Advocate and Insolvency Professional 
Other Directorship in the Other Listed Companies NIL
Committee position in other Listed entities NIL
Skill & Capabilities required for the role Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya is having Profes-

sional experience of over 32 year with extensive 
exposure in corporate law, compliances, regulato-
ry affairs and corporate restructuring which will be 
helpful for company’s good corporate governance 
practices.

Inter-se relationship between directors as required under Regulation 36 (3) (c) of Listing Regulation: 

None of the above Directors are related to any other Directors of the Company.

	 By order of the Board of Directors
For FCS Software Solutions Limited

	 Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Company Secretary)
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), sets out 
all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Items of the accompanying Notice dated July 7, 
2022

Item No. 3
M/s Aadit Sanyam & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the 24th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on September 28, 2017 for a period of 5 years, 
upto the conclusion of 29th AGM. Therefore, M/s SPMG & Company, Chartered Accountants, was proposed 
to be appointed and have given their consent for their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company and 
has issued certificate confirming that their appointment, if made, will be within the limits prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder. M/s SPMG 
& Co. have confirmed that they are elegible for the proposed appointment under the Act, the Chartered 
Accountant Act, 1949 and the rules or regulations made thereunder. As confirmed to Audit Committee, the 
Auditors have reported their independence from the Company and its subsidiary according to the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and the ethical requirements relevant 
to audit. Based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, it is hereby proposed 
to appoint M/s. SPMG & Company, Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration No. 509249C, as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term of five consecutive years, who shall hold office from the 
conclusion of this 29th AGM till the conclusion of 34th AGM of the Company. The Board has approved a 
remuneration upto Rs. 12,50,000/- (Twelve Lacs Fifty Thousand Only) for conducting the audit excluding 
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. The remuneration proposed to be paid to 
Statutory Auditor shall be commensurate with the services to be rendered by them during the said tenure. 
The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee may alter and vary the terms and conditions 
of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with 
the Statutory Auditors.
M/s SPMG & Company is a multi-disciplinary Audit Firm catering to various clients in deverse sectors. The 
firm holds the ‘Peer Review’ certificate as issued by ‘ICAI’.
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the 
members.  
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are interested or 
concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 4

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and under the provisions 
of Section 161 of the Act, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 6th May, 2022 has appointed Ms. 
Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company who holds her office up to date of this Annual General Meeting.

The appointment of Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) as Non-Executive Director Independent Director 
shall be effective upon approval by the members in their Meeting under the provisions of Section 149 and 
152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company has received notice in writing from a member 
under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of a Director. Ms. Archana Sharma 
(DIN: 08300527) has also given her consent to act as a Director and has given a declaration stating that she 
is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and that she meets 
the criteria of independence as prescribed in both sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”). In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) fulfils 
the conditions for her appointment as an Non-Executive Independent Director as specified in the Act and 
the Listing Regulations. Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) is independent of the Management and 
possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge.
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The relevant particulars of Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) as required under the provisions of 
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per 
SS-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is annexed to this notice.

Copy of letter of appointment of Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) setting out the terms and 
conditions of appointment is available for inspection by the members at the website of the Company 
at www.fcsltd.com 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives except Ms. Archana 
Sharma are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item 
No.4 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the 
members.  

Item No. 5

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and under the provisions 
of Section 161 of the Act, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 7th July, 2022 has appointed 
Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive 
Independent Director on the Board of the Company who holds his office up to date of this Annual General 
Meeting.

The appointment of Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) as Non-Executive Independent Director 
Director shall be effective upon approval by the members in their Meeting under the provisions of Section 
149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company has received notice in writing from a 
member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of a Director. Mr. Brijesh Singh 
Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) has also given his consent to act as a Director and has given a declaration 
stating that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and 
that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed in both sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act 
and under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 
00489983) fulfils the conditions for his appointment as an Independent Non-Executive Director as specified 
in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) is independent of the 
Management and possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge.

The relevant particulars of Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) as required under the provisions 
of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as 
per SS-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is annexed to this notice.

Copy of letter of appointment of Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) setting out the terms 
and conditions of appointment is available for inspection by the members at the website of the Company 
at www.fcsltd.com 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives except Mr. Brijesh Singh 
Bhadauriya are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at 
item No.5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 
members. 

Item No. 6

Mr. Dalip Kumar was re-appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years from 
01.04.2020 to 31.03.2025, considering the contribution of Mr. Dalip Kumar towards the Company and as per 
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company 
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at its meeting held on 7th July, 2022 approved the payment of maximum remuneration payable to him for the 
remaining tenure.

The revised remuneration payable to Mr. Dalip Kumar, as determined by the Board of Directors, based on 
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as under:-

Salary: upto 5,00,000/- per month

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the 
members. 

Item No. 7

It would be appropriate to approve remuneration of Mr. Sunil Sharma as an executive Director of the 
Company for the period of his appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends remuneration of Mr. Sunil Sharma, Excutive 
Director of the Company subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company in Annual General 
Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 3rd day of August, 2022 as a Special Resolution, at the remuneration, 
in accordance with norms laid down in Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed remuneration and terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN: 05359128) 
are as given below:

Remuneration, benefits and perquisites:

	 I.	 Salary: A total Salary within the range of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Ten Lakhs Only) to Rs. 12,00,000 
(Twelve Lakhs Only) per annum including all the allowances and perquisites, shall be payable to 
him with the power to the Board or any committee thereof, to increase the salary within the said 
range on the basis of his performance.

	 II.	 Limit on Remuneration: The remuneration as specified in clauses above shall be subject to 
the overall limit as specified under Section 196, 197 and other applicable provisions read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Board of Directors or any committee thereof may alter/vary the remuneration from time to 
time, provided that the aggregate of the above salary, allowances, perquisite, variable pay and 
other benefits shall not exceed Rs. 12,00,000/- (Twelve lakhs only) per annum.

	 III.	 Minimum Remuneration: Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and or any other 
approval required, if any, under any other act, the consent of the shareholders is being accorded 
that the above remuneration shall be minimum remuneration payable to this Director in the event 
of absence or inadequacy of profit in any financial year during his tenure.
Save and except Mr. Sunil Sharma and his relatives, none of the Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 7 of the Notice.
The Board recommends this resolution for the approval of the members as Special Resolution.

	 IV.	 Sitting Fees: He shall not be paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors 
of the Company and committees thereof.

By order of the Board of Directors
For FCS Software Solutions Limited

	 Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Company Secretary)
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Years at a Glance (Consolidated FS)
 (Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year    2022 2021
Revenue from operations 3,461.69 3,405.87
Operating profit (EBITDA)  654.16 (463.18)
Other Income 188.30 269.70
Profit before tax (PBT) 39.79 (1,157.09)
Profit after tax (PAT) (5.23) (1,232.22)
EPS  (par value of Re. 1 each)
Basic  (0.00) (0.07)
Diluted (0.00) (0.07)
Dividend - -
At the end of the year
Fixed assets – net 20,448.18 20,448.18
Investment 8,818.16 8,561.22
Non-Current Assets 2,314.23 2,262.54
Net current assets 217.68 1,159.22
Total assets 37,912.24 33,397.88
Debt 2,181.28 2,461.04
Liabilities and Provisions 942.10 1,193.67
Total Liabilities & Debts 3,123.38 3,654.71
Equity (Shareholders Fund)/ Net Worth 34,788.86 29,743.16



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

22

Directors’ Report
(For the Year 2021-2022)

Dear Stakeholders,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Twenty Ninth (29th) Director’s Report on business and 
operations along with financial statements of the Company for financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

1.	 Financial Results

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, read with Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions 
of the Act. There are no material departures from the prescribed norms stipulated by the Accounting 
Standards in preparation of the annual accounts. The following are the financial highlights for the 
Financial Year 2021-22.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Revenue from operation 3,431.59 3,366.82 3,461.69 3,405.87
Other Income 185.53 267.12 188.30 269.70
Total Income 3,617.12 3,633.94 3,649.99 3,675.58
Operating Expenditure 3,070.63 2,922.22 3,116.30 3,075.26
Depreciation and Amortization 
exps

385.68 461.48 385.68 461.51

Total Expenses 3,456.31 3,383.71 3,501.98 3,536.77
Profit before Share of profit / 
(Loss) of Associates, Exceptional 
Item, Finance Cost and tax

389.42 482.64 376.70 371.20

Share of Profit / (Loss) of 
Associates

NA NA (0.32) 0.31

Exceptional Items (107.90) (1,296.21) (107.90) (1,296.21)
Profit before Finance Cost and 
tax

281.52 (813.57) 268.48 (924.70)

Finance Cost 228.61 232.40 228.69 232.40
Profit before tax 52.91 (1,045.97) 39.79 (1,157.09)
Tax expense 44.98 75.13 45.01 75.13
Profit after Tax 7.92 (1,121.10) (5.23) (1,232.22)
Other Comprehensive Income 154.26 (93.76) 2,592.10 (236.35)
Total Income for the Period 162.18 (1,214.86) 2,586.87 (1,468.57)

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review. 
2.	 Overview of Financial Performance and State of Company’s affairs
During the financial year 2021-22, Company’s consolidated revenue from operations was Rs. 3,461.69 
Lakhs as against Rs. 3,405.87 in the previous financial year 2020-21. 
A detailed analysis on the Company’s state of affairs and performance is included in the “Management 
Discussion & Analysis Report” which forms part of this Director’s Report.
3.	 Impact of Covid- 19 Pandemic
The management has evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and based on its 
review, there is no significant impact on its business operations. However, the impact assessment of COVID 
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19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly 
the impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The 
Company will continue monitoring any material changes to future economic conditions.

4.	 Share Capital

The paid up capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 17095.53 Lakhs comprising of 17095.53 
Lakh equity shares of Re.1 each. During the year under review, there has been no change in the capital 
structure of the Company. 

5.	 Changes in the nature of business

There were no change in the nature of business of the company during the year under review. 

6.	 Material changes and Commitments

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the balance sheet relates and 
the date of this report.

7.	 Transfer to Reserves

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the 
year under review.

8.	 Dividend 

In view of the requirement of funds for the expansion of the Company’s business, your directors  have 
decided not to recommend any dividend.

9.	 Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Board of your Company is duly constituted in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Change in Board of Directors:-

Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN: 05359128) on recommendation of the nomination and remuneration committee was 
re-appointed as an executive director of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 
2021 for a period of 5 years till 28th September, 2026.

Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri (DIN: 08614902), Independent Director of the Company has tendered his resignation 
from the Board on 8th February, 2022. He has provided the resignation letter to the Board of the Company 
and has also confirmed that there was no material reason for his resignation other than those stated in his 
resignation letter.

Ms. Archana Sharma (DIN: 08300527) was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of a non-
executive Independent director with effect from 6th May, 2022 by the Board of Directors and holds office up 
to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(1C) of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. It is proposed to appoint her as non-executive Independent director for the period of five years 
commencing from 6th May, 2022 to 5th May, 2027 subject to shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting by way of Special Resolution.

Mr. Brijesh Singh Bhadauriya (DIN: 00489983) was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of a 
non-executive Independent director with effect from 7th July, 2022 by the Board of Directors and holds office 
up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(1C) 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. It is proposed to appoint him as non-executive Independent director for the period of five years 
commencing from 7th July, 2022 to 6th July, 2027 subject to shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting by way of Special Resolution.
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Retire by Rotation:-

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh (DIN:08201381), 
Non-Executive Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends to the member the appointment of 
Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh (DIN:08201381) as Director of the Company in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

The details of Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh (DIN:08201381), as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per Secretarial Standard - 2 of General Meeting are 
contained in the accompanying Notice calling Twenty Ninth (29th) Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
which forms an integral part of this Report.

Key Managerial Personnel:-

There had been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under 
review.

10.	 Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board met six times during the financial year 2021-22, the details of the Board Meeting with regard 
to their dates and attendance of each director have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015..  

11.	 Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, and that of its Committees and individual directors pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”). The manner in which such formal annual evaluation was made by the Board is 
given below: 

●	 Performance evaluation policy for Board, Committees of the Board and Directors were approved by the 
Board at its meeting and the same were placed on the Company’s website www.fcsltd.com.

●	 The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and 
framework adopted by the board. 

●	 The report of performance evaluation so arrived at was then noted and discussed by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and the Board in their respective meetings.

●	 Under law, as per the report of performance evaluation, the Board shall determine, inter alia, whether 
to continue the term of appointment of the independent director. During the year under review, there 
was no occasion to decide on the continuance of the term of appointment of any of the independent 
directors and hence, the question of taking a decision on their re-appointment did not arise. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance 
of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was 
done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.

12.	 Board Committee

The Board has 4 (Four) Committees:-

1.	 Audit Committee
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2.	 Nomination and Remunaration Committee
3.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee
4.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Details of all the committees along with their composition, terms of reference and meetings held during the 
year are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, as part of this Annual Report.

13.	 Management Discussion and Analysis

The report on Management Discussion and Analysis Report  as required under Schedule V of the SEBI(Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 read with Regulation-34 is annexed and form 
part of Annual Report.

14.	 Directors’ responsibility statement

To the Members,

We, the directors of FCS Software Solutions Limited, pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, confirm the following:

1.	 that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures;

2.	 that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that 
period;

3.	 that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4.	 that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

5.	 that the Board of Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

6.	 that the Board of Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

15.	 Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022 
will be available on the Company’s website at www.fcsltd.com. 

16.	 Statement on Declaration under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the declaration and confirmation to the Company 
as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 confirming that they meet the criteria of 
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) 
and 25(8) of Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation 
which exists or may be anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. 

All Independent Directors have registered their name in the Independent Directors data bank maintained by 
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

17.	 Particulars of Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees

Information as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in “Annexure –E” to this 
report. 
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The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, is not provided since there were no employees who were drawing remuneration more than Rs. 
102 lakhs per annum during the year or Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month if employed for part of the financial year 
under review.

18.	 Policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 
178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report.

The Board of Directors of our Company have reviewed the affairs of all the subsidiary companies. A statement 
of holding company’s interest in subsidiaries as required under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
forms part of this annual report.

A Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries is provided in Form- AOC-1 
as “Annexure A” to this Director’s Report. In accordance with the third proviso of the Section 136(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report of the Company, containing therein its standalone and consolidated 
financial statements have been placed on the website of the Company, www.fcsltd.com

19.	 Particulars of Contract or Arrangement with Related Party

All transactions entered into by the Company with related parties during the financial year were in the 
Ordinary course of business and on an arm’s lenth basis. The Company did not enter into any transactions 
with KMP’s other than payment of their remuneration. As stipulated by section 134(3)(h) of the Act 
read with rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of related party transactions are 
given in form no. AOC-2 as “Annexures-B” to this report. In compliance with Regulation 46(2)(g) of 
listing regulation policy on dealing with related party transactions as approved has been hosted on the 
Company’s website. 

20.	 Particulars of Loan, Guarantees or Investments

In Compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(g) forming part of this Annual Report particulars of  
loans, Guarantees and Investment covered under the provisions of section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are 
provided in the notes to the Financial Statement.

21.	 Conservation of energy, research and development, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo

The particulars as prescribed under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo etc. are furnished in “Annexure C”  which forms part of this Report. 

22.	 Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and as such, no amount on account 
of principal or interest was outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet during the year under review. 
Hence, the requirement of furnishing of details of deposits which are not in compliance with Chapter V of 
the Act is not applicable.

23.	 Corporate Social Responsibity (CSR) 

In terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rule, 2014 and other clarification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

Annual Report on CSR pursuant to clause (o) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is Annexed as “Annexure-D” of the 
Director’s Report. 
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24.	 Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Company as per Companies Act, 2013

As of 31st March, 2022, Company has Three Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies outside India, viz. F.C.S 
Software Middle East FZE in UAE, FCS Software Solutions GmbH, in Germany and FCS Software (Shanghai) 
Co. Ltd. in China, FCS has two Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies in India i.e. Insync Business Solutions 
Limited and Stablesecure Infraservices Private Limited.

M/s. Enstaserv Eservices Limited is the associate company of FCS Software Solutions Limited.

The consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind 
AS) forms part of the Annual Report and are reflected in consolidated financial statement of the Company.

25.	 Internal Financial Control

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of fraud, error reporting mechanisms, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, the timely 
preparation of reliable disclosures. 

26.	 Ensuring Compliance of laws

The company has devised and set in place proper systems to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to 
the company.

27.	 Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board 
and all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the Company. The Code has been 
posted on the Company’s website at www.fcsltd.com.

28.	 Transfer to Investor Education and Protection fund

During the year, no amount of dividend was unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years and therefore 
no amount is required to be transferred to Investor Education and Provident Fund under the Section 125(1) 
and Section 125(2) of the Act.   

29.	 Policy on Sexual Harassment

FCS has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal for employees on sexual harassment at 
workplace as per The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013. 

During the financial year 2021-22 there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

30.	 Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

In Compliance with the provisions of Section-177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule- 7 of 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of SEBI(Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Company has a vigil mechanism through Whistle 
Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the policy is explained 
in the Corporate Governance Report and is also placed on the website of the Company.

31.	 Corporate Governance Report

As stipulated by Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (c) of listing regulations, a Report on Corporate 
Governance along with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with 
the conditions of the Corporate Governance is forming part of this report.

Certificate confirming compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, is provided as “Annexure F” 
to this Director’s Report.
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32.	 Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with applicable 
Accounting Standards forms a part of this Annual Report.

33.	 Company’s policy relating to directors appointment, payment or remuneration and discharge of 
their duties

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
are applicable to the Company and hence the Company has adopted a policy relating to appointment 
of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

34.	 Auditors

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Aadit Sanyam & Associates, Chartered Accountant, is the existing statutory auditor of the Company 
were appointed at 24th Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2017 to hold the office till conclusion 
of our 29th Annual General Meeting for a period of 5 years. 

The Audit Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 read with relevant Notes thereon are self-explanatory and do not call for any further explanation. The 
Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of 
the Act, and therefore no details are required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. VS Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, 
to conduct Secretarial Audit for the F.Y. 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. VS Associates, 
Practising Company Secretaries for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure-G”. 

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.	

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. SPMG & Company, Chartered Accountants as 
an internal auditor of the Company for financial year 2021-22. 

35.	 Listing Fees

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) with scrip code No. 532666 and on 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) with scrip code of FCSSOFT. The Company confirms that 
the annual listing fees to both the stock exchanges for the financial year 2021-22 have been paid.

36.	 Secretarial Standards

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has issued Secretarial Standard -1 (SS-1) on ‘Meetings of 
the Board of Directors’ and Secretarial Standard – 2 (SS-2) on ‘General Meeting’ and both the Secretarial 
Standards have been approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act. Pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Act, it is mandatory for the Company to observe the Secretarial 
Standards with respect to Board Meeting and General Meeting. The Company has adopted and followed the 
set of principles prescribed in the respective Secretarial Standards for convening and conducting Meetings 
of Board of Directors, General Meeting and matters related thereto. 

37.	 Certificate of Non- Disqualification of Directors

The Certificate required as per Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forming part of annual report is Annexed as 
“Annexure-H”.
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The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Vikas Gandhi & Associates, Practising Company 
Secretaries, to provide certificate of Non- disqualification from professional for the F.Y. 2021-22. The certificate 
of Non- disqualification of directors of M/s. Vikas Gandhi & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, is annexed herewith.   

38.	 Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

The Annual Secretarial Compliance under Regulation 24(A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was done by Neeraj Arora & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

39.	 Fraud Reporting

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Act to the Audit 
Committee or the Board of Directors during the Financial Year under review.

40.	 Disclosure of Employee Stock Option Scheme / Purchase Scheme 

During the year under review, Company has not provided any employee stock option / purchase scheme.

41.	 Significant / Material orders passed by the Regulator/Courts/ Tribunal

During the year, there were no any significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

42.	 Event based disclosures

1.	 Issue of sweat equity shares: NA
2.	 Issue of shares with differential rights: NA
3.	 Issue of shares under employee’s stock option scheme: NA
4.	 Disclosure on purchase by Company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: NA
5.	 Buy back shares: NA
6.	 Disclosure about revision : NA
7.	 Preferential Allotment of Shares: NA

43.	 Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 (IBC):

There is no application filed for corporate insolvency resolution process, by a financial or operational creditor 
or by the company itself under the IBC before the NCLT.

44.	 MD/CFO Certifications:

The Managing Director and CFO certification of the financial statements for the year 2021-22 is annexed 
in this Annual Report and a Declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director as required under para D 
of Schedule V of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 as an 
“Annexure I”.
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“Annexure-A”
AOC-I

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/
associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with  
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

1 Names of subsidiar-
ies

F.C.S Soft-
ware Middle 
East FZE

FCS Soft-
ware Solu-
tions GmbH

FCS 
Software 
(Sanghai) 
Co., Ltd.

Insync 
Business 
Solutions 
Ltd.

Stablesecure
Infraservices 
Private Lim-
ited

2 Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned

1st April,2021 
to 31st March, 
2022

1st April,2021 
to 31st 
March, 2022

1st 
April,2021 
to 31st 
March, 2022

1st 
April,2021 
to 31st 
March, 2022

1st April,2021 
to 31st March, 
2022

3 Reporting currency USD EURO YUAN INR INR

4 Share capital 73,732,970 25,000 123,210 5,00,000 13,76,00,000

5 Reserves & surplus (73,732,970) (25,000) (123,210) 9,732,754 34,188,836

6 Total assets - - - 11,069,902 171,841,027

7 Total Liabilities - - - 837,148 52,191

8 Investments - - - - -

9 Turnover - - - 4,570,440 -

10 Profit before taxation - - - (1,166,382) (113,933)

11 Tax Expenses - - - 2,665 -

12 Profit after taxation - - - (1,169,047) (113,933)

13 Other Comprehensive 
Income

- - - 25,240 9,772,493

14 Proposed Dividend - - - - -

15 % of shareholding 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 
and Joint Ventures

Associate Company 
Name of associates/Joint Ventures Enstaserv Eservices Limited
1.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31stMarch, 2022
2.	 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the 

year end
No. of Equity Shares 82,79,930
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture Rs. 8,27,99,300/-
Extent of Holding % 48.94%
3.	 Description of how there is significant influence
4.	 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA
5.	 Operating Profit attributable to shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet
6.	 Profit/(Loss) for the year (Before Tax) Rs. (65,022)
	 i.	 Considered in Consolidation Rs. (31,822)
	 ii.	 Not Considered in Consolidation Rs. (33,200)
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to shareholding as per 
latest audited Balance Sheet
Total other Comprehensive Income Rs. 495,000,000
Considered in Consolidation Rs. 242,253,000
Not Considered in Consolidation Rs. 252,747,000

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For FCS Software Solutions Limited

		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Shayam Sunder Sharma	  Dalip Kumar
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Director)	 (Chairman & Managing Director)
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The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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“Annexure B”
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 
arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

	 There were no contracts or arrangement or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 
2022, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

-	 Insync Business Solutions Ltd.: wholly owned Subsidiary Company

(b)	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Rental Income

(c)	 Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 11 Months

(d)	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 
Rs.130,000 Pm

(e)	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 15/09/2020

(f)	 Amount received as advances, if any: Rs. 47.21 Lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Noida	 Sd/-
Date: 07/07/2022	 Dalip Kumar
		  (Chairman & Managing Director)
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Noida        Harsha Sharma
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The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
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“Annexure C”
Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange Earning and Outgo  
Particulars pursuant to Companies  

(Disclosure of particulars in the report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

Conservation of energy

We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. We are always in lookout for energy efficient 
measures for operation, and value conservation of energy through usage of latest technologies for quality 
of services. Although the equipments used by the Company being in the business of software development 
and education are not energy sensitive by their very nature, still the Company is making best possible efforts 
for conservation of energy by putting in place a well defined policy, which assures that the Computers and 
all other equipments purchased by the Company strictly adhere to environmental standards, and they make 
optimum utilization of energy. 

The Company has also put in place, the continuous process of identifying and replacing in a phased manner, 
the machinery like Computers, Air Conditioners and UPS etc., which are low in efficiency.

Research and Development (R&D)

The Company believes that in order to improve the quality and standards of services, the Company should 
have a progressive Research and Development Process, which should keep on increasing along with the 
scale of operations of the Company. The Company has team which works on R&D in order to improve 
quality of Services.

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation 

In this era of competition, in order to maintain and increase the clients and customers, we need to provide 
best quality services to our clients and customers at minimum cost, which is not possible without innovation, 
and adapting to the latest technology available in the market for providing the services. For this purpose, 
your company has partnered with market leaders in technology. The senior management of your Company 
is focused on the ongoing process of technology up gradation, and reinvention of business model of your 
Company, as and when required.

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

During the year around 57.78% of revenues were derived from exports. The foreign exchange earned 
comprising of FOB value of exports, services was Rs. 1983.11 lakhs whereas total foreign exchange used 
(comprising of CIF value of imports and other outgoings) was Rs. 9.75 lakhs.

Foreign Exchange Earned and Used (Rs. In Lakhs)
2021-22 2020-21

Earning 1983.11 1,697.93
Outflow 9.75 3.96
Net Foreign Exchange Earning 1973.36 1693.97

	
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                  

For FCS Software Solutions Limited

	 Sd/-
Place : Noida	 Dalip Kumar
Date : 07/07/2022	 (Chairman & Managing Director)
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“Annexure-D”
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

(CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy of the Company - FCS Software Solutions Limited aims 
to create economic value and to actively contribute towards the development of a sustainable society by 
taking up projects for the common good through responsible business practices and good governance. 
Our CSR Policy is formulated in compliance of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made there under

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31st March, 2022 consisting of:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director Designation/ Nature of 
Directorship

Number of 
meeting(s) of 

CSR Committee 
held during the 

year

Number of 
meeting(s) of 

CSR Committee 
attended during the 

year
1. Mr. Shayam Sunder 

Sharma
Chairperson & Non-
Executive-Independent 
Director

1 1

2. Mr. Mahendra Pratap 
Singh

Non-Executive Director 1 1

3. Mr. Sunil Sharma Executive Director 1 0

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

	 Corporate Social Responsibility has always been an integral part of FCS’s vision. FCS believes 
that corporations must reach out to the society and help in improving the quality of education and 
healthcare through various community development programs. Composition of CSR committee, CSR 
Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

	 Web link: www.fcsltd.com

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): 
NA

5.	 Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the financial year, 
if any: NA

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5), Rs. 4,43,058/-

7.	 (a)	Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5)- Company does not fall in 
the criteria as specified in Section 135(1), so there was no requirement to spend any amount 
on CSR Activities.

	 (b)	Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years- 
NIL

	 (c)	Amount required being set-off for the financial year, if any- NA
	 (d)	Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)- NIL

8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NA

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – NA
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Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- NA
	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- NA
	 (g)	 Excess amount for set-off, if any: NA

9.	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s): NA

10.	In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): NA

	 (a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s):

	 (b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:

	 (c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.:

	 (d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location 
of the capital asset):

11.	Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): NA

Sd/-		  Sd/-
Sunil Sharma	 Shayam Sunder Sharma
Executive Director	 Chairman CSR Committee



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
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	 “Annexure- E”
As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to disclose 
following information in the Board’s Report:

Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year

1.	 Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of 
the Company for the financial year 2021-22, the percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other Executive Director and Company Secretary during the financial 
year 2021-22.

S. 
No.

Name of Directors/
KMP

Designation Ratio of remuneration 
of each Director to 

median remuneration of 
Employees

Percentage 
increase in 

Remuneration

1 Sunil Sharma Executive Director 1.89 NIL
2 Anil Kumar Sharma Chief Financial Officer 5.01 NIL
3 Harsha Sharma Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer
1.86 NIL

2.	 The Company has 265 permanent Employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2022. 

3.	 Average percentage increase made in the salaries of Employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the financial year was 9.80% whereas there was no change in the managerial remuneration during 
the financial Year.

4.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Company. 

Note: 

*	 The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fee only. The details of remuneration 
of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The ratio of remuneration 
and percentage increase for Non-Executive Directors Remuneration is therefore not considered for the 
purpose above. 
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Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
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Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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“Annexure- F”



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
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the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
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Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Annexure- G”
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Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
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the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
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Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
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Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
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Annexure- H” 

 
 

 
                 Company Secretaries in whole-time Practice 

 

 

Office: 262F, Gandhi Awas Yojna, 
Sector -12, Sonepat  - 131001. 

Mobile : 9996084042. 
E-mail: vickygandhi8@gmail.com 

csvikasgandhi@gmail.com 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF 
DIRECTORS (pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V 

Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
 
 
To,  
The Members of  
FCS SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
Registered Office:- 205, 2nd Floor, Agarwal  Chamber IV, 27,  
Near Sawarker Block, Vikas Marg,  
Shakerpur, Delhi-110092. 
 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of FCS Software Solutions Limited having CIN L72100DL1993PLC179154 
and having registered office at 205, 2nd Floor , Agrawal Chamber IV, 27, Near Sawarker 
Block, Vikas Marg, Shakerpur, Delhi DL 110092 IN (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
 
In our opinion and to the best of my/our information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority 
 
 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

in Company 
1 DALIP KUMAR 00103292 05/05/1993 
2 SHAYAM SUNDER SHARMA 00272803 08/12/2000 
3 SUNIL SHARMA 05359128 13/08/2016 

4 SHWETA SHATSRI 06480421 24/09/2014 

5 MAHENDRA PRATAP SINGH 08201381 14/08/2018 

 
 
 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is 
the responsibility of the management of the Company.  
 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
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efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

                    
 

For Vikas Gandhi & Associates 
Company Secretaries in whole time practice 

 

 
 

(Vikas Gandhi) 

Proprietor 

M. No. 35924 

CP No. 13266 

UDIN: F010339D000547656 

Date: 30th June, 2022 

Place: Sonepat 

VIKAS 
GANDHI

Digitally signed by VIKAS GANDHI 
DN: c=IN, o=Personal, 
postalCode=131001, 
st=HARYANA, 
serialNumber=29b6cee91ef940bf0
9aa0ae7a0e8563a75b1bf415cbda
dabbc8f34b7c996efe7, cn=VIKAS 
GANDHI 
Date: 2022.07.09 15:15:43 +05'30'
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“Annexure- I”
Chairman & Managing Director (CMD) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification

We, Dalip Kumar, Chairman & Managing Director and Anil Kumar Sharma, Chief Financial Officer of FCS 
Software Solutions Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that-

a.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of FCS Software Solutions  
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

(ii)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b.	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
2021-22, are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

c.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems of the company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the 
design on operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to recify those deficiencies.

d.	 We have indicated, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i)	 that there are no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the 
quarter; 

(ii)	 that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the quarter, and that the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial results.

(iii)	 that no significant instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and involvement therein, if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control 
systems over financial reporting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For FCS Software Solutions Limited

Place: Noida	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Date: 07/07/2022	 Dalip Kumar	 Anil Kumar Sharma
	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer
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Declaration by the Chairman &Managing Director under Para D of Schedule V of  
The SEBI (Listing Obiligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015

To, 
The Members of FCS Software Solutions Limited,

I, Dalip Kumar, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby confirm that the Company has 
obtained from all the members of the Board and Management Personnel, affirmation that they have complied 
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors/Management Personnel for the  year ended 31st 
March, 2022.

Date :07/07/2022	 Sd/-
Place:Noida	  Dalip Kumar
	 (Chairman & Managing Director)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2021-22

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

	 The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations 2015).

	 The Company has adopted the principles of good Corporate Governance and is committed to adopt best 
relevant practices for Governance to achieve the highest levels of transparency and accountability in all 
its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees, lenders and the Government. 

	 The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with 
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”), as applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(a)	 COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

	 The Board of the Company, as on 31st March, 2022, comprised of five Directors out of whom two are 
Independent directors (including one women director), two are executive directors and one is non-
executive director in accordance with Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”). 

	 The details of Board of Directors of the Company are as below:-
1.	 Mr. Dalip Kumar- Chairman & Managing Director (Executive Director)
2.	 Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma- Non Executive Independent Director
3.	 Ms. Shweta Shatsri- Non Executive Independent Director
4.	 Mr. Sunil Sharma- Executive Director
5.	 Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh- Non Executive Director 

	 All Independent Directors are well qualified professionals bringing wide range of experience 
in business, finance and law. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 
Committees or Chairman of more than 5 (five) Committees across all companies in which he/she is 
a Director. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size.

	 All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI listing Regulations. The Company has issued formal 
letters of appointment to Independent Directors, whenever required, in the manner as provided in 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

(b)	 Director’s attendance record:

Name  of  Directors No. of Board 
Meetings held 

during the year

No. of Board 
Meeting held 
during tenure

No of 
Meetings 
attended 

Whether 
attended the 

last AGM
Mr. Dalip Kumar 6 6 1 NO
Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma 6 6 6 YES
Ms. Shweta Shatsri 6 6 5 YES
Mr. Sunil Sharma 6 6 6 YES
Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh 6 6 5 YES
Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri 6 5 1 NO

*	 Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri resigned from the position of Independent Director, w.e.f. 8th February, 
2022
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(c)	 Composition, Category of Directors and their other Directorship as on 31st March, 2022

Director’s  name  Position and Category No.of  Directorships in 
other Indian Public and 
Private Ltd.  Companies 

Mr. Dalip Kumar Executive 
(Chairman & Managing Director)

4

Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma Non-Executive 
(Independent Director)

7

Ms. Shweta Shatsri Non-Executive 
(Independent Director)

1

Mr. Sunil Sharma Executive Director 3
Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh Non – Executive Director 0

	 Details of Directorship(s) held by the Directors on the Board in other Listed Companies 
during the financial year 2021-22:

	 The directors of the Company is not having any other directorship in listed entity during the financial 
year 2021-22, except Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma who is also Director in one more listed Company 
namely D C M Limited.

(d)	 Number of Board Meetings

	 The Board met Six times during the financial year 2021-22 and dates for the Board meetings are:

1.	 June 29, 2021
2.	 August 13, 2021
3.	 September 03, 2021
4.	 November 12, 2021
5.	 February 11, 2022
6.	 March 24, 2022

(e)	 Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se: 

	 No director of the Company is having any relationship with other director.

(f)	 As on 31st March, 2022, non executive directors does not held any equity shares in the Company. 
Also, the Company does not have any convertible instruments.

(g)	 The details of the familiarisation programme for Independent Directors are given below: 

	 At the time of Appointment of an Independent Director on the Board, the Company familarilize the 
director about business and industry environment, the applicable various Board policies, code of 
conduct and insider trading.

	 The details of policy framed for familiarisation of the Independent Directors are available on the 
website of the Company at https://www.fcsltd.com.

h)	 Skills/Expertise/Competencies Of The Board Of Directors:

	 The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors 
as required in the context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available with the 
Board Members:

i)	 Knowledge on Company’s businesses (IT and ITES Services), policies and culture (including 
the Mission, Vision and Values) major risks / threats and potential opportunities and knowledge 
of the industry in which the Company operates.

ii)	 Behavioral skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute 
effectively to the growth of the Company



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

48

iii)	  Corporate Governance, Administration, Decision Making. 

iv)	 Financial and Management skills 

v)	 Technical / Professional skills and knowledge in relation to Company’s business

i)	 All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI listing Regulations. The Company has issued formal 
letters of appointment to Independent Directors, whenever required, in the manner as provided in 
the Companies Act, 2013.

j) 	 Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri resigned from the post of Independent Director due to some personal 
reasons and also confirm that there are no other material reasons other than those provided in 
resignation letter.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

Shareholding of Directors as on March 31, 2022:

Directors Mr. Dalip 
Kumar

Mr. Shayam 
Sunder 
Sharma

Mr. Raj 
Kumar 

Manikpuri

Ms. 
Shweta 
Shatsri

Mr. Mahendra 
Pratap Singh

Mr. Sunil 
Sharma

% of Shares 
held

10.8751% Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

3.	 Independent Directors Meeting:

	 In view of the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013, the Company 
was required that the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year.

	 Independent Directors Meeting comprise of the following Independent Directors of the Company:

Name of Directors Category
Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma Independent Director
Ms. Shweta Shatsri Independent Director

	 During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 11th February, 2022 , inter alia, to 
discuss:

1.	 Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 
Whole; 

2.	 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 
Executive and Non Executive Directors. 

3.	 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

4.	 COMMITEES OF THE BOARD:

	 The Board has constituted various committees with specific terms of reference and scope. The details 
of the committees constituted by the Board are given below:

4.1	Audit Committee:
	 The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets the criteria laid down under Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

(a)	 The terms of reference to the Audit Committee inter alia includes:

•	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

•	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process; 
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•	 Approval or preapproval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 
related parties except the transactions with a wholly owned subsidiary whose accounts are 
consolidated with the Company and placed before the shareholders at the General Meeting for 
approval;

•	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

•	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

•	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism. 

(b)	 Composition, name of members and Chairperson of the Audit Committee is given below:

	 The Audit Committee consists of two Independent Directors i.e., Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma and 
Ms. Shweta Shatsri and one executive director i.e, Mr. Sunil Sharma. Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma, 
Independent Director was Chairperson of Audit Committee.

(c)	 The Committee met Five times during the financial year 2021-22. The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows:

Members Position and Category No. of Meetings 
held during the 

year

No. of Meeting 
entitled to 

attend

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Shayam 
Sunder Sharma

Chairman–Independent 
Director

5 5 5

Ms. Shweta 
Shatsri

Member-Independent 
Director

5 5 5

Mr. Sunil Sharma Member- Executive 
Director

5 5 4

	 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

4.2	Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

(a)	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the company is constituted in line with the provisions 
of Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act. The Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee comprises of three Independent Directors.

	 The terms of reference to the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as given below: 

•	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees;

•	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Committees of Board and the 
Board;

•	 Devising a policy on Board diversity;

•	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal; 

•	 The Committee will develop and review induction procedures for new appointees to the Board to 
enable them to become aware of and understand the Company’s policies and procedures and to 
effectively discharge their duties. 
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b)	 The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and particulars of meetings held 
and attended by the members are given below:

Members Position and Category No. of 
Meetings held 

during year

No. of Meetings 
entitled to 

attend

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Mahendra Pratap 
Singh*

Member-  Non-Executive 
Director

1 0 0

Mr. Shayam Sunder 
Sharma

Chairman–Independent 
Director

1 1 1

Ms. Shweta Shatsri Member-Independent 
Director

1 1 1

Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri** Member-Independent 
Director

1 1 0

*	 Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh appointed as member of the Committee, w.e.f 11th February, 2022
**	 Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri has resigned from the Directorship, w.e.f. 8th February, 2022

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

c)	 Performance Evaluation criteria for the Independent Directors
1.	 Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 

Whole; 
2.	 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 

Executive and Non Executive Directors. 
3.	 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and 

the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

5.	 Remuneration of Directors: 

	 The details of remuneration paid to the Directors are given in Form MGT–9 which will be available on 
Company’s website.

6.	 Independent and Non-executive directors’ compensation:

	 The non-executive and Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the 
Board of Directors within the ceilings prescribed by the Central Government.

7.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. Mr. Shayam 
Sunder Sharma, Independent Director is the Chairman of this Committee.

	 The terms of reference to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists inter-alia the following: 

•	 Look into the redressing of the shareholders complaints and queries and to focus on the strengthening 
of investor relations; 

•	 To monitor and review the performance and service standards of the Registrar and Transfer 
Agents (RTA) of the Company and provides continuous guidance to improve the service levels for 
investors;

•	 Monitor and review any investor complaints received by the Company or through SEBI, SCORES 
and ensure its timely and speedy resolution, in consultation with the Company Secretary and Chief 
Compliance Officer and RTA of the Company.

	 The attendance record of the members at the meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee were 
as follows:
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Name of Directors Category Status No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma Independent- Non Executive Director Chairperson 1 1
Ms. Shweta Shatsri* Independent- Non Executive Director Member 1 0
Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh Non Executive Director Member 1 1
Mr. Raj Kumar Manikpuri** Independent- Non Executive Director Member 0 0

	 *	 Ms. Shweta Shatsri appointed as member of the Committee, w.e.f 11th February, 2022
**	 Mr. Rajkumar Manikpuri has resigned from the Directorship, w.e.f. 8th February, 2022

	 Numbers of Shareholder’s complaints received by Company from its RTA, BSE, NSE, SEBI and 
Shareholders, during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 are as under:

S. No. Authority No. of complaints
1. NSE 0
2. BSE 0
3. RTA 0
4. SEBI 0
5. Shareholders ---

Total Grievances/Complaints received during the financial year -----
Total Grievances attended -----------
d) No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders NIL
e) Total Grievances pending NIL

	 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Stakeholder Relationsip Committee.

8.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee: 

	 As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formed a CSR committee 
consisting of the below members:

	 Terms of reference of the CSR Committee are:

•	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy indicating the activities from the specified list 
of activities in Schedule VII of the Act;

•	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred for the chosen activities;
•	 Monitor the CSR Policy and activities from time to time;
•	 To carry on such task and activities as may be assigned by the board of directors from time to 

time.

Members Position and Category No. of 
Meetings held

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Shayam Sunder Sharma Chairman–Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Sunil Sharma Member-Executive Director 1 0
Mr. Mahendra Pratap Singh Member- Non Executive Director 1 1

	 Terms of reference of the CSR Committee are:
•	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy indicating the activities from the specified list 

of activities in Schedule VII of the Act;
•	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred for the chosen activities;
•	 Monitor the CSR Policy and activities from time to time;
•	 To carry on such task and activities as may be assigned by the board of directors from time to 

time.
The CSR policy of the Company is available on our website: www.fcsltd.com
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The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

9.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

	 Details of last  three General Meetings are as under:

Year Day, Date and Time of Meeting Venue No. of Special 
Resolutions passed

2018-19 Wednesday, November 13, 2019
Annual General Meeting
Time: 9.00 A.M

The Executive Club, 439, 
Village Shahoorpur, Fatehpur 
Beri, New Delhi –110 074.

4

2019-20 Tuesday, 
September 29, 2020 Annual 
General Meeting
Time: 11.00 A.M

Through Video Conferencing 
(VC) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM)

1

2020-21 Wednesday, 
September 29, 2021 Annual 
General Meeting
Time: 11.30 A.M

Through Video Conferencing 
(VC) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM)

1

	 Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot

	 For the year ended March 31, 2022, there have been no special resolutions passed by the Company’s 
Shareholders through postal ballot.

10.	MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	 Quarterly/half-yearly/Annual financial results: The quarterly and half-yearly/Annual financial results 
are forthwith communicated to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (NSE), where the shares of the Company are listed, as soon as they are approved and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors.

	 Newspaper wherein results are normally published: Public notices and financial results are published 
in leading newspapers, namely, The Financial Express in English and Hari bhoomi in Hindi.

	 Website: The Company’s website (www.fcsltd.com) contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor 
Relations’ where shareholders information is available. The Company’s Annual Report is also available 
in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

11.	 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

	 The Company has following Non-Listed Indian Subsidiary Companies i.e. Insync Business Solutions 
Limited, Stablesecure Infraservices Private Limited.

	 The Company’s Indian unlisted subsidiaries does not fall under the definition of “material unlisted Indian 
subsidiaries”.

	 The Audit Committee of directors of the Company reviews the financial statements and in particular 
investments made by the unlisted subsidiaries. 

	 Material Subsidiaries Policy:

	 The board has duly formulated a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries. A subsidiary is considered 
as “a material subsidiary”, if its income or networth exceeds 10% of the consolidated income or networth 
of the Company during the previous financial year.

	 Copy of the said policy is available on the Company’s website in the following link:

	 http://www.fcsltd.com/home/Policy_criteria_determining_materiality_events.pdf
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12.	GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

	 Annual General Meeting
	 Date and Time		  :	 3rd August, 2022 11:30 A.M
	 Mode		  :	 Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).
	 Financial Calendar		  :	 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022

	 Tentative Calendar for declaration of results for the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Results for the Quarter / Year ending Date of Declaration
June 30, 2022 On or before August 14, 2022
September 30, 2022 On or before November 14, 2022
December 31, 2022 On or before February 14,  2023
March 31, 2023 (Annual Audited) On or before May 30, 2023

	 Dividend Payment Date:

	 No Dividend is recommended for the financial year 2021-22.

	 Date of Book Closure:  28/07/2022 to 03/08/2022 (Both days inclusive)

	 Name of Stock Exchange where shares are listed

Bombay Stock
Exchange

BSE Limited
PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers 
Dalal Street
Mumbai- 400001

National Stock
Exchange 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1,G Block,
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai: 400051

	 Listing fee for 2022-23	: Paid for both the above stock exchanges.

	 ISIN No.			   : INE512B01022 (for fully paid up shares)

	 ISIN No.			   : IN9512B01020 (for partly paid up shares)

Name of the Stock Exchange Exchange code
BSE 532666
NSE FCSSOFT

	 Stock market price data

	 Monthly High and Low and the performance of our share price vis-à-vis NSE (Nifty) and BSE (Sensex) 
is given below and Chart A and B (overleaf) respectively.

	 Performance comparison with indices:

Month BSE NSE Total Volume 
(Nos.)High Low Volume High Low Volume

Apr-21 0.71 0.59 15906254 0.75 0.6 43678087 59584341
May-21 1.19 0.65 28130628 1.2 0.65 142893909 171024537
Jun-21 2.71 1.21 105075428 2.3 1.2 88848586 193924014
Jul-21 2.62 1.67 93185720 2.5 1.65 97647545 190833265
Aug-21 2.39 1.42 33702645 2.4 1.55 79487083 113189728
Sep-21 1.58 1.22 36854285 1.55 1.2 94611263 131465548
Oct-21 1.69 1.24 58700677 1.65 1.25 101725363 160426040
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Month BSE NSE Total Volume 
(Nos.)High Low Volume High Low Volume

Nov-21 2.65 1.33 111598807 2.4 1.3 89230949 200829756
Dec- 21 5.63 1.98 197850260 4.85 1.9 70380948 268231208
Jan-22 9.05 5.62 218053988 8.3 5.05 152676635 370730623
Feb-22 6.39 3.17 55642595 6.35 3.45 128153483 183796078
Mar-22 5.16 3.29 64638016 5.0 3.3 109256651 173894667

Total 1019339303 1198590502 2217929805
Chart- A
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	 Share transfers in physical form

	 Shares sent for physical transfer are affected after giving a notice of 15 days to the seller for sale 
confirmation. Our Investors’ Grievance Committee meets as often as required.
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	 The total number of shares transferred in physical form during the year was nil.

	 As the Company’s shares are compulsorily to be traded in dematerialized form, members are 
requested to send the shares if held in physical form, directly to the Registrars and Transfer Agents 
for dematerialization. Members have the option to open their accounts either with National Securities 
Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India) Limited as the Company has entered into 
Agreements with both the Depositories.

	 All physical share transfers are returned within 30 days of lodgment subject to the documents being in 
order.

	 Share transfer system

	 M/s. Link Intime (India) Pvt. Ltd. are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for processing 
transfers, sub-division, consolidation, splitting of shares and for rendering depository services such as 
Dematerialization and Re-materialization of the Company’s shares.

	 Distribution of shareholding

	 Following Tables list the distribution of the shareholding of the equity shares of the company by size and 
by ownership class as on March 31, 2022.

	 Shareholding pattern by size

	 As on 31st March, 2022

Shareholding of 
Normal Value (Rs.)

No. of 
shareholder

% of total 
shareholder

No. of shares 
held

% of Total 
shares

Upto 500 253306 56.3235 42188580 2.4678
501-1000 71780 15.9605 62710047 3.6682
1001-2000 48951 10.8844 79338444 4.6409
2001-3000 19835 4.4104 52316751 3.0603
3001-4000 10299 2.2900 37995599 2.2225
4001-5000 12162 2.7043 58924199 3.4468
5001-10000 18059 4.0155 141858454 8.2980
10001- & above 15342 3.4113 1234221026 72.1955
Total 449734 100.0000 1709553100 100.0000

	 Shareholding Pattern By Ownership

Categories As on March 31, 2022 As on March 31, 2021
No of share % of holding No of share % of holding

Promoter-
Indian 335962450 19.6521 335962450 19.6521
Foreign 0 0 0 0
Mutual Fund & UTI 0 0 0 0
Banks and 
Financial Institution 
and Insurance 
Companies

486100 0.0284 0 0

Central Government/
State Government

568300 0.0332 568300 0.0332

Foreign Portfolio 
Investors

584730 0.0342 0 0
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Categories As on March 31, 2022 As on March 31, 2021
No of share % of holding No of share % of holding

Foreign Institutional 
Investor

0 0 0 0

Private Bodies 
Corporate

273875060 16.0203 494964128 28.9528

Indian Public-
Individual

1053008100 61.5955 839277243 49.0934

NRI/OCB’s 19885933 1.1632 13617879 0.7965
Clearing Member 5405536 0.3162 5038752 0.2974
Others 19776891 1.1569 20124348 1.1773
Total 1709553100 100 1709553100 100

	 Dematerialization of the shares and liquidity:

	 As on March 31, 2022, to the extent of 99.97% shares of the company were held in de-materialized 
form. Trading in Company’s shares is permitted only in dematerialized form as per notifications issued 
by Securities Exchange Board of India. The Company has entered into	 agreements with National 
Securities Depository Ltd. & Central Depository Services (India) Ltd., whereby the investors have the 
options to dematerialize their shares with either of the depositories.

	 The Company shares are among the most liquid and actively traded shares on BSE & NSE. The 
monthly trading volumes of the Company shares on these Exchanges are given above. The status of 
Dematerialization as on March 31, 2022 is as under:

Segment No. of Sharehold-
ers

% of Total No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares % of Total No. of 
Shares

Physical 114 0.025 493143 0.029
Demat	 449620 99.975 1709059957 99.971
Total 449734 100 1709553100 100

	 Plant Locations

	 The Company has 9 offices as on 31st March, 2022 located in 6 cities across India and other offices are 
in Dubai, Germany and China. The addresses of these offices are available on our corporate website/
Annual Report.

	 Address for Correspondence
	 FCS Software Solutions Limited,
	 Plot no. 83, NSEZ, Phase-II,
	 Main Dadri Road, Noida-201305
	 Tel No’s: - 0120-4635900
	 Fax No: - 0120-4635941
	 E-Mail ID:-investors@fcsltd.com

	 NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):

	 The NEAPS is a web based application designed by NSE for corporate. All periodical compliance filings 
like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, are filed electronically on NEAPS.

	 BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’)

	 BSE’s Listing Centre is a web based application designed for corporate. All periodical compliance 
filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, are filed electronically on BSE Listing 
Centre.
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	 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

	 The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redressal systems. The 
salient features of this system are: Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken 
Reports (ATR’s) by concerned Companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the 
complaint and its current status.

	 Code of Conduct

	 In compliance with Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed and 
adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics (‘the Code’). In terms of Code of Conduct, the Directors and 
Senior Management must act within the boundaries of the authority conferred upon them and with 
a duty to make and enact informed decisions and policies in the best interests of the Company and 
its shareholders and stakeholders. The Company obtains the affirmation compliance of the Code of 
Conduct from its Directors and senior Management on an annual basis.

	 All members of the Board, the executive officers and senior financial officers have affirmed compliance 
to the code as on 31st March, 2022.

	 The Code of Conduct is available on our website:www.fcsltd.com

13.	DISCLOSURES

Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions, i.e. the Company’s transactions 
that are of material nature, with its promoters, Directors and the management, their relatives or 
subsidiaries, among others that may have potential conflict with the Company’s interest at large

There were no materially significant related party transaction during the financial year 2021-22.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and structures imposed on the Company by 
Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any other statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets 
during last three years

There has been no instance of non-compliances by the Company on any matter related to capital markets.

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a whistle blower policy to provide opportunity to associates to represent, in good faith, to 
the Head-Human Resources in case they observe unethical and improper practices or any other wrongful 
conduct in the Company and to prevent managerial personnel from taking any adverse vindictive personal 
action against those associates. Any person who observes any unethical & improper practices may disclose 
it as soon as possible to the Head-Human Resources. During the year no person was denied access to the 
Head-Human Resources and there was no case reported under the policy.

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on our website:www.fcsltd.com

Compliance with mandatory / non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 
The non mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the manner as stated under the 
appropriate headings detailed elsewhere in this report.

Code for prevention of Insider-Trading practices 

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention of insider trading, the company has instituted a 
comprehensive code of conduct for its management and staff. The code lays down guidelines, which advises 
them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of company, and 
cautioning them of the consequences of violations.
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Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects with all the applicable accounting 
principles in India, the applicable accounting standards notified u/s 2(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
‘Act’) and the relevant provisions of the Act.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis is given separately and forms part of this Annual Report.



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

59

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overview

FCS Software Solutions Limited is an IT Company provides a wide range of IT and IT-enabled services which 
include software development, marketing and providing support services mainly for corporate business 
entities in the BPO, software development, e-learning service and other related Information Technology 
Enabled Services. The company also carries business of leasing or letting out all kind of immovable property 
including IT Infrastructural premises whether freehold, leasehold to any type of person. 

COVID-19 Impact on Business Outlook

The management has evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and based on its 
review, there is no significant impact on its business operations. However, the impact assessment of COVID 
19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly 
the impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The 
Company will continue monitoring any material changes to future economic conditions.

A.	 Industry structure and developments:-

	 The industry structure in the IT sector has four major categories. These are - 

●	 IT services 	 ●	 IT enabled services 
●	 Infra Management Solutions	 ●	 Education/E-Learning

IT services constitute a major part of the IT industry of India. IT services include client, server and web based 
services. Opportunities in the IT services sector exist in the areas of consulting services, management 
services, internet services and application maintenance. The major users of IT services are – 

●	 Government	 ●	 Banking 
●	 Financial services 	 ●	 Retail and distribution 
●	 Manufacturing

FCS works with clients to maintain their IT Applications on Time and Material (T & M) basis or Fixed Price 
Fixed Timeframe (FPFT) basis. 

●	 Based on client’s Request for Proposal (RFP) and provide an estimate of time and cost.
●	 Based on nature of work, FCS will suggest T & M or FPFT pricing model as well as global delivery 

model.
●	 FCS replicates application environment based on project needs or will use secure VPN connections to 

directly log in client servers.
●	 Set Centers of Excellence (COEs) to leverage talent skilled in a set of specific technologies and 

domains.
●	 Set up Lab Model for temporary deployment of resources for one time kind of work e.g. Application 

Testing, Third party Application Audit etc. 

IT enabled services:-

The services which make extensive use of information and telecommunication technologies are categorized 
as IT enabled services. The IT enabled services is the most important contributor to the growth of the IT 
industry of India. Some of the important services covered by the ITES sector in India are – 

●	 Customer-interaction services including call-centers
●	 Back-office services 	 ●	 Revenue accounting
●	 Data entry and data conversion 	 ●	 HR services
●	 Transcription and translation services 	 ●	 Content development and animation 
●	 Remote education, 	 ●	 Data search 
●	 GIS 	 ●	 Market research
●	 Network consultancy
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Application Portfolio Support for Enterprise Applications

Infrastructure Management Services:- 

Collocation Data Centers, Virtualization, System and Networks Support, Plug and Play Infrastructure 
provisioning, WAN, IP Based Voice, Cyber Security

Leasing Incomes:- The Company is also in the business of leasing or letting out all kind of immovable 
property including IT Infrastructural premises whether freehold, leasehold to other organisations.

Education/ E- Learning 

Content Aggregation, Learning Management Systems, Portals, Assessment.

B.	 Opportunities and Threats  

Opportunities

1.	 Specific industry domain and technology expertise, and in methodologies such as Design    Thinking 
and agile software development.

2.	 Agile Digital at scale : Build new enterprise-wide capability that delivers new levels of business    
performance at one end and customer delight at the other.

3.	 AI-powered core : A foundation of fully-automated processes and systems along with the vital insights 
to prioritize execution of change.

4.	 Always-on learning : Drive continuous improvement by building and transferring digital skills and  
expertise along with ideas from a cross-section of industries an

THREATS:

1.	 Currency fluctuations and declining interest rates may affect the results of our operations. 

2.	 War between foreign nations could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial 
condition.

3.	 Increasing Probability of disruptive climate change events such as strategic risks, Physical risks and 
transitional (market and compliance risk.)
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C.	 Segment-wise / Product-wise Performance 

The company has shown average performance being impacted by the global slowdown and the uncertainty 
in the domestic economy, For the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company reported a total 
consolidated revenue income of Rs. 3461.69 lakhs and Standalone revenue of Rs. 3431.59 lakhs The 
percentage wise revenue contribution of each segment is as below:

1.	 IT & IT Enable Services
2.	 Education/E – Learning 
3.	 Infrastructure management

 

IT & IT Enable Services
36%

Education/E –Learning 
33%

Infra Management
31%

FCS SBU

D.	 Outlook for the future

The Company is taking all possible steps to improve its performance in these uncertain times and is also 
cautiously exploring various options for improving its bottom line.

E.	 Risk and Concern

The Risk Management framework of your Company ensures regular review by management to proactively 
identify the emerging risks, to do risk evaluation and risk prioritization along with development of risk 
mitigation plans and action taken to minimize the impact of the risk. These processes are also periodically 
reviewed by management. 

F.	 Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has an appropriate Internal Auditor control system for its various functions with the ultimate 
objective of improving efficiency in its operations, better financial management and compliance with 
regulations and applicable laws. The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal 
Auditors who independently evaluate the adequacy of the internal control system on quarterly basis. For 
ensuring transparency and effectiveness, the management considers and takes appropriate action on the 
recommendations made by Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and by Management Committee / Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors.

G.	 Financial performance with respect to operational performance

For the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company reported a total consolidated revenue income of 
Rs. 3461.69 lakhs and Standalone revenue of Rs. 3431.59 lakhs. 

H.	 Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations Front, including number of 
people employed

As on 31st March, 2022, the Company had 265 permanent employees working at various locations. 

The company considers the employee values and ensures proper encouragement both morally and 
financially to motivate them. The relationship between the management and employees is remarkable.
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I.	 Details of Significant Changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanation thereof;

S. No. Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 Changes Remarks/Explanation
1 Current Ratio 1.16 2.07 -91.13% During the FY 2020-21, amount of 

Rs. 800 Lakhs was paid for share 
application money and the same was 
shown as current assets but after 
allotment during the year the same 
transferred to Investments which has 
resulted decline in current assets 
during the year

2 Debt-Equity Ratio 0.07 0.08 -0.97%

3 Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

1.45 -0.75 220.15% Exceptional Items (Loss on Discarded 
Assets & Loss on sale of investments) 
Declined from 1296.21 lakhs from 
107.90 lakhs and Increase in Export 
Income by Rs. 285 Lakhs which has 
resulted increase in Earning Before 
Interest, Tax, Depreciation and 
amortization during the year.

4 Return on Equity 
Ratio

0.03% -0.04% 3.79%

5 Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover Ratio

0.05 0.18 -12.45%  

6 Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio

0.03 0.03 -0.04%  

7 Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio

27.94 3.27 2466.14% 1. During the FY 2020-21, amount 
of Rs. 800 Lakhs was paid for share 
application money and the same was 
shown as current assets but after 
allotment during the year the same 
transferred to Investments which has 
resulted decline in working capital 
during the year
2.  Increase in Export Income during 
the year by Rs. 285 Lakhs which has 
resulted increase in turnover during 
the year.

8 Net Profit Ratio 0.23% -33.30% 33.53% Exceptional Items (Loss on 
Discarded Assets & Loss on sale of 
investments) Declined from 1296.21 
lakhs from 107.90 lakhs and Increase 
in Export Income by Rs. 285 Lakhs 
which has resulted increase in Net 
Profit during the year.
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S. No. Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 Changes Remarks/Explanation
9 Return on Capital 

Employed
0.02 -0.05 6.41%

10 Return on 
Investments

0.00 0.00 0.00%

J.	 Compensation

Our technology professionals receive competitive salaries and benefits. We have a performance-linked 
compensation program that links compensation to individual performance, as well as our Company’s 
performance.

K.	 Cautionary Note

The statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” section describes the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be “forward looking statements” 
within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can differ materially from those 
expressed or implied, depending upon the economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental 
factors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

			   Sd/-
Place: Noida	 Dalip Kumar
Date: 07/07/2022	 (Chairman & Managing Director)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
FCS Software Solutions Limited
Report on Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of FCS Software Solutions 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries, listed in Annexure I (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate, listed in Annexure I, 
which comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the consolidated statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of its consolidated loss and other 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
there-under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

(i)	 We draw your attention to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 
March, 2022, wherein the Holding Company transferred the shares held in the company Readystate 
Infraservices Private Limited at a loss of Rs. 107.90 lakhs and the impact of the same has been covered 
under the heading Exceptional Items in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 
ended March 31, 2022.

(ii)	 We draw your attention to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 
2022, wherein ‘other comprehensive income’ includes Rs. 2422.53 Lakhs which pertains to changes in 
the fair value of Investment held by associate company, Enstaserv E-Services Limited. The effect of the 
same has been considered under ‘other comprehensive income’ for the year ended March 31, 2022, as 
per Ind AS 28 “Investment in Associate and Joint Ventures.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated:-

S. No. The key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Fair Valuation of Investments

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has 
investments of  Rs 14,392.30 Lakhs in the 
Equity and Preference Shares of various 
companies (Ref Note No. 6 of Consolidated  
Financial Statements) which are measured at 
fair value as per Ind AS 109 read with Ind AS 
113. These investments are Level 3 investments 
as per the fair value hierarchy in Ind AS 113 
and accordingly determination of fair value 
is based on a high degree of judgment and 
input from data that is not directly observable 
in the market. Accordingly, the same has been 
considered as a key audit matter

Our audit procedures included and were not 
limited to the following: 
•	 Reviewed the fair valuation reports provided 

by the management by involvement of 
external valuation experts.

•	 We assessed the assumptions around the 
discount rates, expected growth rates and its 
effect on business and terminal growth rates 
used through involvement of the external 
experts.

•	 We also involved internal experts to assess 
the Company’s valuation methodology and 
assumptions, applied in determining the fair 
value.

•	 Assessed the objectivity and competence 
of Company’s internal / external specialists 
involved in the process. 

•	 Reviewed the disclosures made by the 
Company in the financial statements

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in  section 134(5)  of the  Act 
with  respect  to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that  give  a  true  and  fair  view  
of  the  consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including total comprehensive 
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in  accordance with 
the Ind-AS and other accounting principles generally  accepted  in  India.  The respective Management 
and Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
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prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the 
company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their 
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management .

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Directors of the Holding Company 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities within 
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
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direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of the entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

(a)	 We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of one Indian 
subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs. 110.70 Lakhs as at March 
31, 2022 and net assets of Rs. 102.33 lakhs, total revenue of Rs. 47.62 lakhs and net cash flow 
amounting to Rs. (20.33) lakhs for the year ended on that date and financial statements and other 
financial information of one associate company which reflect the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 0.32 
Lakhs and groups share of other comprehensive income of Rs 2,422.53 lakh for the year ended 31st 
March, 2022. These Ind As financial statements and other financial information have been audited by 
other auditors, these financial statements, other financial information and auditors’ reports have been 
furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and 
our report in terms of sub section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on the report(s) of the other auditors.

(b)	 The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include unaudited financial statements and 
other unaudited financial information in respect of three foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements 
and other financial information reflect total assets of Rs Nil lakhs as at March 31, 2022, and total 
revenues of Rs Nil lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs Nil lakhs for the year ended on that date. These 
unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us 
by the management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other 
unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are not material 
to the Group

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified 
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, 
that: 
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a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity and the consolidated 
statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of the written representation received from the directors of the Holding company as 
on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the board of directors of the holding company and on 
the basis of written representations received by the management from directors of its subsidiaries 
which are incorporated in India, as on 31st March 2022, none of directors of the Group’s companies 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporate in India and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

3.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 41 to the Consolidated 
financial statements; 

ii.	 The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative 
contracts during the year ended 31st March, 2022;

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv.	 (a)	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the holding company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any 
other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Holding Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

	 (b)	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Holding 
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India from any person or entities, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
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in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (c)	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

v.	 The Holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India has not declared or 
paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not 
applicable.  

4.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors Report under section 197(16) of the Act: 

	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India to 
its directors is in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which 
are incorporated in India, is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 
details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No. –531388

UDIN:  22531388AJXNLQ1735
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th May, 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the 
Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date)

(xxi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorporated in India 
and included in the consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports 
under Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”), which have been reproduced as per the 
requirements of the Guidance Note on CARO.

S. 
No

Name of Entities CIN Holding Company/
Subsidiary Company/
Associate Company 

Clause 
Number of 

CARO Report
1. FCS Software Solutions 

Limited
L72100DL1993PLC179154 Holding Company Clause (i)(b)

Clause (xiv)(a)
2. Insync Business Solutions 

Limited
U72900DL2009PLC196146 Subsidiary Company Clause (i)(a)(A)

3. Stable secure Infra 
services Private Limited

U72100DL2010PTC207678 Subsidiary Company Clause (i)(b)

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No. – 531388

UDIN:  22531388AJXNLQ1735

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th May, 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements of FCS 
Software Solutions Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-sec on 3 of Sec on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in Para 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of 
our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of FCS Software Solutions Limited 
(“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31st March 2022, we have audited the internal 
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such 
companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of 
that date. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding 
Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by such companies 
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 
criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements were established and maintained if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedure selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

72

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that:-

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2.	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

3.	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No. – 531388

UDIN:  22531388AJXNLQ1735
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th May, 2022
Annexure I: List of Entities Consolidated

Holding Company:
FCS Software Solutions Limited

Foreign Subsidiaries:
1.	 F.C.S Software Middle East FZE
2.	 F.C.S Software Solutions GmbH
3.	 FCS Software (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Indian subsidiaries:
1.	 Insync Business Solutions Limited
2.	 Stablesecure Infraservices Private Limited*

Associate:
1.	 Enstaserv E-Services Limited
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CIN No: L72100DL1993PLC179154
Particulars Note 

no. 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
[I] ASSETS 
1. Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3  20,002.09  20,448.18 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 255.22 164.20 
(c) Intangible assets 5 14.39 15.39 
(d) Financial assets
   - Investments 6  14,392.30  8,561.22 
   - Loans and advances 7  1,852.76  1,669.47 
   - Others Financial Assets 8 192.44 214.81 
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 78.65 98.84 
(f) Other non-current assets 10 131.85 99.83 

2. Current assets 
(a) Financial assets
   - Trade Receivables 11 196.54 632.52 
   - Cash and cash equivalents 12 296.79 298.33 
   - Loans and advances 13 116.26 920.11 
   - Others Financial Assets 14 141.57 51.69 
(b) Other  current assets 15 241.39 223.28 
TOTAL  37,912.24  33,397.88 

[II] EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity

(a) Equity Share capital     16  17,095.53  17,095.53 
(b) Other Equity 17  17,693.33  12,647.63 

2. Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities
  - Borrowings 18  1,872.90  2,184.76 
   - Other Financial Liabilities 19 340.83 359.55 
(b) provisions 20 134.80 143.70 

3. Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities
   - Borrowings 18 308.38 276.28 
   - Trade payables 21
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 2.93 1.13 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and 
Small Enterprise

103.91 105.99 

   - Other Financial Liabilities 22 18.74 - 
(b) Provisions 23 20.16 5.39 
(c) Other Current Liabilities 24 260.44 459.60 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 25 60.30 118.32 
TOTAL  37,912.24  33,397.88 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sanyam Jain	 Shayam Sunder Sharma 	 Dalip Kumar
(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNLQ1735
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  Place: Noida	
		  Date: 30.05.2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars Note 

no.
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
For the year ended 

31 March, 2021
Revenue from operations 26  3,461.69 3,405.87 
Other income 27 188.30  269.70 

Total revenue  3,649.99 3,675.58 

Expenses
Emloyee benefit expense 28  2,249.67 2,058.84 
Finance cost 29 228.69  232.40 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 385.68  461.51 
Other Operating expense 31 637.94  784.02 

Total expenses  3,501.98 3,536.77 

Profit Before Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates, 
Exceptional Item and Tax

148.01  138.80 

Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates (0.32)  0.31 

Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax 147.69  139.11 

Exceptional Items (107.90)  (1,296.21)

Profit/ (loss) before tax 39.79  (1,157.09)

Tax expense 32
a) Current tax 24.85  60.99 
b) Deferred tax 20.16  14.14 

Profit/ (loss) for the period before Other Comprehensive Income (5.23)  (1,232.22)

Other comprehensive income
-  �Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

1 Remeasurement of defined employee benefits plan 4.47  1.04 
2 Changes in Fair Values of Investment in Equities carried 

at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
 2,587.63 (237.39)

Net Other Comprehensive Income  2,592.09 (236.34)

Total comprehensive income for the period  2,586.87  (1,468.57)
 (Profit/ loss + other comprehensive income)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 33
a) Basic (0.00) (0.07)
b) Diluted (0.00) (0.07)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sanyam Jain	 Shayam Sunder Sharma 	 Dalip Kumar
(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNLQ1735
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  Place: Noida	
		  Date: 30.05.2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Accounting Policy:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or  expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

       Particulars  As at  As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 39.79 (1,157.09)
 Adjustments for : 

 Depreciation and amortisation 385.68 461.51 
 Loss on Sale/Discarded Assets 107.90  1,296.21 
 Interest income (183.43) (247.39)
 Finance costs 228.69 232.40 

      Other Adjustments  0.32  (0.31)
578.94 585.32 

Working capital adjustments:
 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 435.98 (87.16)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances (179.45) (163.43)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (91.41) (29.58)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (0.28) (46.21)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (45.81)  29.88 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities  (199.14) 179.38 
 Cash Generated from Operations 498.84 468.19 
 Income Tax Paid 60.99  81.85 

NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES (1)

437.85 386.34 

2. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (232.84) (187.07)
 Interest Income 183.43 247.39 
 Proceeds from sale of investments 140.00  80.69 
 Purchase of Investment in Equity Shares (21.55) - 

 - - 
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2) 69.05 141.01 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Finance costs (228.69) (232.40)
 Proceeds from borrowings 341.43 -
 Repayment of borrowings (621.19) (248.04)

NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3) (508.45) (480.45)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (1+2+3)

(1.54)  46.91 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 298.33 251.43 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 296.79 298.33 
81,153,451 
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       Particulars  As at  As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents :
    (i) Balances with banks
       -  In current accounts 254.39 254.09 
    (ii) Cash in hand 42.40  44.24 

Total  296.79 298.33 

b. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities :
   Opening Borrowings 2,461.04  2,709.08 
   Add: Borrowing raised during the year 341.43 - 
   Less: Repayment of Borrowing during the year (621.19) (248.04)

Closing Balance 2,181.28 2,461.04 

As per our report of even date attached

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sanyam Jain	 Shayam Sunder Sharma 	 Dalip Kumar
(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNLQ1735
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

		  Place: Noida	
		  Date: 30.05.2022
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FCS Software Solutions Limited
Notes Forming Part of Accounts for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

CIN: L72100DL1993PLC179154

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.	 COROPORATE INFORMATION 

	 FCS Software Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the company’ or ‘the holding company’) and 
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) is primarily engaged in providing 
a rage of IT and business services, engineering and product & platform service. The group business 
consists of software development and marketing and providing support services mainly for corporate 
business entities in the BPO sectors, software development, e-learning service and other related 
Information Technology Enabled Services. The group also carries business of leasing or letting out all 
kind of immovable property including IT Infrastructural property whether freehold, leasehold to any type 
of person.

	 The company is a public limited company incorporate and domiciled in India and has its registered 
office at 205, 2nd Floor, Aggarwal Chamber IV, 27, Veer Sawarkar Block, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, Delhi 
– 110092. The Company has its primary listings on the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. 

	 The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 were approved and 
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2022. 

2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

	 These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain 
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant amendment rules 
issued thereafter.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

	 These consolidated financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (“INR”) which is also the 
Group’s functional currency. All Amount is reported in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise 
stated.

2.2	 Basis of Consolidation

	 FCS consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements 
comprise the financial statements of the Company, its controlled entities and its subsidiaries 
which are as follows;

Name of the Group Company % Shareholdings
31.03.2022

% Shareholdings
31.03.2021

Country of 
Incorporation

FCS Software Middle East FZE 100 100 UAE
FCS Software Solutions GmbH 100 100 Germany
FCS Software Shanghai Limited 100 100 China
Insync Business Solutions Limited 100 100 India
Stablesecure Infraservices Pvt. Ltd. 100 100 India
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	 The Consolidated Financial statements also comprise the following associate companies;

Name of the Group Company % Shareholdings
31.03.2022

% Shareholdings
31.03.2021

Country of 
Incorporation

Enstaserv Eservices  Ltd. 48.94 48.94 India

	 Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are 
consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases.

	 The financial statements of the group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and 
intra-group balances and transactions, including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions, 
are eliminated upon consolidation. These financial statements are prepared by applying uniform 
accounting policies in use at the Group. Non-controlling interests which represent part of the net 
profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled 
by the group, are excluded.

	 Associates are entities over which the company has significant influence but not control. 
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment 
is initially recognized at cost and carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the 
investor’s share of profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date. The group investment 
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

2.3	 Use of Estimates

	 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and 
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. These estimates are based 
on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical experience, actions that the 
Group may undertake in the future and on various other assumptions that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made 
as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes 
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

	 The Group uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its consolidated 
financial statements:

a)	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple products and 
services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition 
and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the 
contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations 
under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Group’s assesses the 
services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the 
contract. Identification of distinct performance obligations to determine the deliverables 
and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables, and 
allocation of transaction price to these distinct performance obligations involve significant 
judgment.
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b)	 Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the 
Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an 
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end 
of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group’s assets are determined by 
the Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at 
each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets 
as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in 
technology.

c)	 Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

	 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations 
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d)	 Provision of Income Tax and Deferred Tax Assets

	 The major tax jurisdiction for the Group is India. Significant judgments are involved in 
determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are 
probable of being sustained in tax assessments.

 	 Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts, The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those 
temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Group’s considers 
the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making 
this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, 
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-
forward period are reduced. 

e)	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

	 The Group estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events 
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These 
provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimates.

	 The Group uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities 
are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent 
assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

f)	 Employee Benefits

	 The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the Group 
to use assumptions. 
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g)	 Impact of COVID-19 (Pendemic)

	 The Group has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation 
of these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, 
liquidity and going concern assumption, recoverability of receivables, unbilled receivables, 
intangible assets, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on 
revenue recognition and assessment of cost. The Group has carried out this assessment 
based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval 
of these consolidated financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not 
material to these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its 
assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements may differ from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements owing to 
the nature and duration of COVID-19.

2.4	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Group derives revenues primarily from IT services comprising software development and 
related services, maintenance, consulting and package implementation, and from licensing of 
software products and platforms across the Groups’s core and digital offerings (together called 
as “software related services”). Contracts with customers are either on a time-and-material, fixed-
price or on a fixed-timeframe basis.

	 Revenue on time-and-material and unit-of-work-based contracts, are recognized as the related 
services are performed. Fixed-price maintenance revenue is recognized ratably either on a 
straight-line basis when services are performed through an indefinite number of repetitive 
acts over a specified period or ratably using a percentage-of-completion method when the 
pattern of benefits from the services rendered to the customer and the Groups costs to fulfil the 
contract is not even through the period of contract because the services are generally discrete 
in nature and not repetitive. Revenue from other fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts, where 
the performance obligations are satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-of-
completion method. Efforts or costs expended have been used to determine progress towards 
completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Progress towards 
completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to date (representing work 
performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts. Estimates of transaction price and total 
costs or efforts are continuously monitored over the term of the contracts. Revenues and 
the estimated total costs or efforts are subject to revision as the contract progresses.. Rental 
Income comprising of rent and other related services from operating lease is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

	 Advance received for services and products are reported as client deposits until all conditions for 
revenue recognition are met. Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price 
which is at arm’s length.

	 The group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit & Loss Account.

	 The Groups has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 resulting from (i) the possibility of constraints 
to render services which may require revision of estimations of costs to complete the contract 
because of additional efforts; (ii) onerous obligations; (iii) penalties relating to breaches of service-
level agreements; and (iv) termination or deferment of contracts by customers. The Groups has 
concluded that the impact of COVID-19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the 
nature of the pandemic, the Groups continues to monitor developments to identify significant 
uncertainties relating to revenue in future periods.
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2.5	 Other Income

	 Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, gain / loss on investments and exchange 
gain / loss on foreign exchange contracts and on translation of other assets and liabilities. Interest 
income is recognized using the effective interest method. 

2.6	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related 
to acquisition and installation less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All direct 
costs are capitalized till the assets are ready to be put to use, as intended by the management. 
The group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the 
written down value method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life of Assets Useful life as per companies act
Buildings 70 Years 60 Years
Office equipment 8 Years 5 Years
Computer equipment 3 Years 3 Years
Furniture and fixtures 14 Years 10 Years
Vehicles 6 Years 6 Years
Servers and networks 8 Years 6 Years

	 Property, plant and equipment are being verified by the management at reasonable intervals i.e. 
once in every three years by rotation.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances and the cost of assets not ready to use before 
such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to 
property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon 
sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

	 If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds 
the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided 
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
any accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years.

	 Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’, as the case 
may be, on the date of disposal.
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	 Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any 
asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; 
depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific 
useful life from the date of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the date on which such 
asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced

2.7	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment 
loss, if any. Intangible fixed assets are capitalized where they are expected to provide future 
enduring economic benefits. Capitalization costs include license fees and cost of implementation/
system integration services. The costs are capitalized in the year in which the software is fully 
implemented for use. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated 
useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated 
useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects 
of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required 
to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives 
are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end. 

	 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed 
as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future 
economic benefits are probable, the group has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell 
the software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include 
the cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the 
asset for its intended use.

	 Intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in 
use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets.

2.8	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 

2.8.1	Functional and Presentation Currency:

	  functional currency of the Group is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial statements 
are presented in Indian rupees.

2.8.2	Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations:
	 Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the 

relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The 
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at 
the date of the Balance sheet.

	 Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are 
included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled. Revenue, 
expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant 
functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction

2.9	 Income Taxes

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates 
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to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected 
to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities are recognized for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as prescribed in 
Ind-AS-12. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive 
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax 
losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of 
subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will 
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group offsets current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and 
where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

2.10	  Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as 
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
occur.

	 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.11	 Financial Instruments

2.11.1	 Initial Recognition

	 The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized 
at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured 
at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured 
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Regular way purchase and sale of 
financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

2.11.2	 Subsequent Measurement
a)	 Non- Derivative financial instruments
(i)	 Financial Assets Carried at amortized

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows.
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(ii)	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows. The Group has made 
an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based 
on its business model

(iii)	  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently 
fair valued through profit or loss.

(iv)	 Financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments

(v)	 Investment in Subsidiaries and others

	 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial 
Statements”. However the provision for impairment on these investments is 
recognized as per the valuation report taken from the registered valuer as prescribed 
u/s 247 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Registered Valuers & 
Valuation) Rules 2018 is considered in compliance of the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013.

b)	 Derivative Financial Instruments

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets, 
liabilities, net investment in foreign operations and forecasted cash flows denominated 
in foreign currency. However, The Group does not holds any derivative financial 
instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts to mitigate the 
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.

2.11.3 Derecognition of Financial Instruments

	 The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition 
under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the 
Group’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

2.11.4  Fair value of Financial Instruments

	 The Group records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The 
Group determines fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the 
principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

	 The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair 
value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:
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	 Level 1 - Quoted inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in 
active markets.

	 Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical 
or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations, in which all 
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable in active markets.

	 Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques, in which one or more significant inputs are 
unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

	 In accordance with Ind AS 113, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following 
valuation techniques:

(a)	 Market approach – Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions 
involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

(b)	 Income approach – Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its 
present value using the discounting method.

(c)	 Cost approach-Replacement cost method

2.11.5 Impairment

	 The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets and unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The amount of 
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.12	  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 
36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, 
or “CGU”).

	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the 
CGU.

	 Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment 
loss had been recognized.
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2.13	  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 The Group estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and 
it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

	 The Group uses significant judgment to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are 
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the group or a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

	 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, 
when inflow of economic benefit is probable, related asset is disclosed.

2.14	Employee Benefits

2.14.1 Gratuity

	 The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) 
covering eligible employees of FCS. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to 
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an 
amount based on the respective employee’s base salary and the tenure of employment 
with the group (subject to a maximum of ` 20 lacs per employee).

	 Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the year in 
which they occur. 

2.14.2 Provident Fund

	 Eligible Employees of the Group receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined 
benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions 
to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s 
salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited in a government 
administered provident fund. The companies have no further obligation to the plan beyond 
its monthly contributions.

2.14.3 Compensated Absences

	 The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences which are both 
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees can carry forward up to 
the specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in 
future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the 
projected unit credit method) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result 
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on 
non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
in the year in which the absences occur. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the 
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
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2.15	  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 
the holding company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 
in conformity with the Ind-AS-33. 

	 Diluted EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 
the holding company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving 
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity 
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value 
(i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are 
deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential 
equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.

	 The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all 
periods presented for bonus shares.

2.16	Recently issued Accounting Pronouncements

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2022, as below:

a)	 Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment 

	 The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and 
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing 
the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales proceeds and 
related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any 
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

b)	 Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs 
that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be 
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) 
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is 
essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements. 

c)	 Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments

	 The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test 
of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. The Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

d)	 Ind AS 116:- Leases

	 The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements 
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease 
incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that 
illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in 
its financial statements.
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his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

 As at  As at 
4. Capital work-in-progress 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

 - Building WIP  255.22  164.20 
Total:  255.22  164.20 

	 Additional Regulatory Information
(i)	 The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as follows:

For the Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
Total

Projects in Progress  91.02  100.06  64.14 -  255.22 

Total Capital work-in-progress  91.02  100.06  64.14 -  255.22 

For the Year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
Total

Projects in Progress 100.06  64.14 - -  164.20 

Total Capital work-in-progress 100.06  64.14 - -  164.20 

Movement in capital work in progress:

Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 
March 2020

 64.14 

Add: additions during the year  100.06 
Less: capitalisation during the year - 
Less: reversal/(provision) for abandoned work - 
Capital work-in-progress  
as at 31 March 2021

 164.20 

Add: additions during the year  91.02 
Less: capitalisation during the year - 
Less: reversal/(provision) for abandoned work - 
Capital work-in-progress  
as at 31 March 2022

 255.22 

(ii)	 There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original 
plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS: 
Intangible assets consist of the following for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars Software & IPR Total
Cost as at April 1, 2021:  371.91  371.91 
Additions  -  - 
Deletions  -  - 
Cost as at March 31, 2022:  371.91  371.91 

Accumulated amortization as of April 1, 2021:  356.52  356.52 
Amortization expense 1.00 1.00 
Add/(less): Adjustments  -  - 
Deletion  -  - 
Accumulated  amortization as of March 31, 2022:  357.53  357.53 
Carrying Amount as of March 31, 2022: 14.39 14.39 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS: 
Intangible assets consist of the following for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars Software & IPR Total

Cost as at April 1, 2020:  368.67  368.67 
Additions 3.24 3.24 
Deletions  -  - 
Cost as at March 31, 2021:  371.91  371.91 

Accumulated amortization as of April 1, 2020:  351.38  351.38 
Amortization expense 5.14 5.14 
Add/(less): Adjustments  -  - 
Deletion  -  - 
Accumulated  amortization as of March 31, 2021:  356.52  356.52 
Carrying Amount as of March 31, 2021: 15.39 15.39 

We have performed impairment testing of PPE and Intangible assets using various assumptions. Based on 
the evaluation we have concluded the there is no impairment of PPE and Intangible assets
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Particulars As at March 
31, 2022

As at March 
31, 2021

6. Non-current investments 
a. Non Trade and unquoted - Investments in equity shares (Carried at 

FVTOCI)  of associates
1 M/s Myzeal IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  1900  

(March 31, 2021 : 1900) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- fully paid
 0.19  0.19 

2 M/s. Enstaserv e-Services Ltd 8279930 (March 31, 2021 : 
8279930 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paidup.

 571.05  571.37 

(I)  571.24  571.56 

b. Non Trade and unquoted - Investments in equity shares (Carried 
at FVTOCI)
1 M/s. Pumarth Properties & Holdings Private Ltd. 400000 

(March 31, 2021 : 400000) equity shares @ Rs. 10 each at 
premium of Rs 215

 900.00  900.00 

2 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 594366 (March 31, 2021 : 594366) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 71/- each i.e. Rs. 10 per share at premium of 
Rs. 61/- and 274285 (March 31, 2021 : 274285) Equity shares of 
Rs. 70/- each i.e Rs. 10 per share at premium of Rs.60/-

 614.00  614.00 

3 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 726966 (March 31, 2021 : Nil) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 113/- each i.e. Rs. 10 per share at premium 
of Rs. 103/- (Refer Note No. 13) *

 821.55 - 

4 M/s Readystate Infraservices Private Limited 23,089 
(March 31, 2021 : 44627) Equity Shares of Rs..1151/- at premium 
i.e. Rs. 10 each per Share and premium @ Rs.1141 and  26844 
(March 31, 2021 : 26844) Equity Shares of Rs. 678/- at premium 
i.e. Rs. 10 each per Share and premium @ Rs.668

 447.75 695.65

5 M/s Heimdahl Software Systems Pvt. Ltd. 100379 
(March 31, 2021 : 100379) Equity Shares of Rs.26/- at premium 
i.e. Rs. 10 each per Share and premium @ Rs.16

 26.10  26.10 

(II)  2,809.40  2235.75 

c. Non Trade - Investments in Preference Shares
1 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 9916138 (March 31, 2021 : 9916138) 

Non-Convertible Non-cumulative redeemable Preference shares of 
Rs. 10 each at premium of Rs. 60/- per share.

 6,941.30  6,941.30 

(III)  6,941.30  6,941.30 

Total Non-Current Investments (I+II+III)  10,321.94  9748.61 

Less/(Add) : Provision for diminution in value of investments  (4,070.36) 1187.39
Net Investments  14,392.30  8,561.22 

*  During the year, the Group has invested Rs. 821.55 Lakhs to acquire 726966 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 
at price of Rs. 113/- per share (including Rs. 103/- per share as security premium).

Note: All investments made in unquoted Companies have been fair valued as on reporting date based on the 
fair valuation report from Category-A merchant banker 
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Particulars  As at March 
31, 2022 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

7. Non Current Financial Assets - Loans & Advances :
 - Loans to Others  1,668.38 1,496.55 
 - Inter-corporate Loans  184.38  172.92 

Unsecured Considered Doubtful
 - Loans to Others  708.01  708.01 
 - Advance against Land  200.00  200.00 
  Less: Provision for doubtful advances (908.01)  (908.01)

Total:  1,852.76 1,669.47 

 As at March 
31, 2022 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

8. Non Current Financial Assets - Others :
 - Bank deposits *  98.00  122.42 
 -  Security deposits  94.44 92.40 

Total:  192.44  214.81 

*  Bank Deposits of Rs. 41.23 Lakhs is lien marked, against outstanding Bank Guarantee of Rs. 52.16 lakh 
(March 31, 2021 : 28.36 Lakhs),  as on reporting date which is not free to use. (Refer Note No. 14 for 
current Bank deposits)

As at March 
31, 2022 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

9. Deferred tax assets (net)
 -  Depreciation and amortisation  49.51 69.70 
 -  Employee benefits  29.14 29.14 

Total:  78.65 98.84 

The management, based on future projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable income in 
foreseeable future, which will enable the Company to utilize  the Deferred tax assets.

As at March 
31, 2022 

 As at March 
31, 2021 

10. Other Non Current Assets :

 -  TDS & IT Refund Receivables  131.85 99.83 

Total:  131.85 99.83 

 As at March 
31, 2022 

 As at March 
31, 2021

11. Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables :
Unsecured
(i) Considered good 223.24 652.53 
(ii) Considered Doubtful -   -   
Less: Provision for doubtful Receivables (26.70) (20.01)
Total: 196.54 632.52 
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      The trade receivables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Less 

than 6 
months

6 
Months- 
1 years

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

1.	Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Goods

146.87 10.34  11.34 19.78  8.22 196.54 

2.	Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit 
impaired

 -  - - 18.48  8.22 26.70 

3.	Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Goods

 -  - -  -  -  - 

4	 Disputed trade receivables -credit impaired  -  - -  -  -  - 

Total  146.87  10.34  11.34  38.26 16.44  223.24 

Less:   Allowance for credit loss 26.70 

Total Trade Receivables 196.54 

       The trade receivables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars Less 

than 6 
months

6 
Months- 
1 years

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

1.	Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Goods

550.27 50.34  23.70  -  8.22 632.52 

2.	Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit 
impaired

 -  -  11.79  -  8.22 20.01 

3.	Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered 
Goods

 -  - -  -  -  - 

4.	Disputed trade receivables -credit impaired  -  - -  -  -  - 
Total  550.27  50.34  35.48 - 16.44  652.53 

Less:   Allowance for credit loss 20.01 
Total Trade Receivables 632.52 

        Additional Regulatory Information

       Relationship with Struck off companies are given below;
As on March 31, 2022
Name of Struck off Company Nature of 

Transactions
 

Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2021-22 

 Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2022 

 
Relationship 
with Struck 
off company 

IBI Biosolutions Pvt.Ltd. Debtors -   8.22  Debtors 

As on March 31, 2021
Name of Struck off Company Nature of 

Transactions
 

Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2020-21 

 Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2021 

 
Relationship 
with Struck 
off company 

IBI Biosolutions Pvt. Ltd.  Debtors -   8.22  Debtors 



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
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 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents :
(i) Balances with banks
  -  In current accounts 254.39  254.09 
(ii) Cash on hand  42.40  44.24 

Total: 296.79  298.33 

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

13. Current Financial Assets - Loans & Advances :
 - Advances to Employee  10.24  27.68 
 - Advances to Others *  4.00  802.42 
 - Advance to Suppliers # 102.02  90.01 

Total: 116.26  920.11 

*  For the year ended 31.03.2021, Advance to Others Include Share Application money of Rs. 800 Lakhs 
paid to Bloom Healthcare & Hospitality Management Pvt. Ltd. against allotment of Equity shares. The 
equity shares were alloted on 26/05/2021. 

Additional Regulatory Information
# Advance to Supplier includes Struck off Companies, details of which is enclosed below.
Name of Struck off 
Company

Nature of 
Transactions

Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2021-22

Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2022

Relationship 
with Struck off 

company

Hallo Holiday Host Pvt. Ltd. Creditors Advance -  0.72 Vendor 
Millenium Vacations Pvt. Ltd.** Creditors Advance -  1.10 Vendor 

Name of Struck off 
Company

Nature of 
Transactions

 Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2020-21 

 Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2021 

 Relationship 
with Struck off 

company 

Hallo Holiday Host Pvt. Ltd. Creditors Advance -  0.72  Vendor 
Millenium Vacations Pvt. Ltd.** Creditors Advance -  1.10  Vendor 
**Under process of striking off

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

14. Current Financial Assets - Others :
 -  Bank deposits* 141.57  51.69 

Total: 141.57  51.69 
* Refer Note No. 8

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

15. Other Current Assets :
 -  Prepaid expense  14.60  28.51 
 -  Unbilled Revenue  52.39  50.51 
 -  Indirect Tax Recoverables  18.07 5.69 
 -  TDS & IT Refund Receivables 156.32  138.56 

Total: 241.39  223.28 
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 

2022 

 As at 
March 31, 

2021

16. Share capital
A. Authorised Capital

185,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid 
up with voting rights

 18,500.00  18,500.00 

B. Issued, Subscribed And Fully Paid Up
170,95,53,100 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- Each fully paid up 
with voting rights

17,095.53  17,095.53 

Total : 17,095.53  17,095.53 
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 1/- each. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The dividend, if any as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

16A. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid up held by:

 As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 Number  % Holding  Number  % Holding 

 - Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88% 185916060 10.88%
 - Enstaserve e services Limited 150000000 8.77% 150000000 8.77%
 - SLG Softech Private Limited 118278469 6.92% 220000000 12.87%
 - Prahlad Estates and Properties Pvt. Ltd. 139856970 8.18% 260000000 15.21%

16B. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022 
and March 31, 2021

 As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of 
Shares 

 Amount  No. of 
Shares 

 Amount 

Number of shares at the beginning of the 
period

1709553100 1,709,553,100 1709553100 1,709,553,100 

Add/Less: Changes in number of shares - -  - - 

Number of shares at the ende of the period. 1709553100 1,709,553,100 1709553100 1,709,553,100 

16C. Details of shareholding of Promoters;
Equity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid up held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31st March, 2022
S. 

No.
Promoter Name No. of 

Shares
% of Total 

Shares
% change 

during the year
1 Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88%  - 
2 Neelam Sharma 46390 0.00%  - 
3 Enstaserv Eservices Limited 150000000 8.77%  - 
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As at 31st March, 2021
S. 

No.
Promoter Name No. of 

Shares
% of Total 

Shares
% change 

during the year
1 Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88%  - 
2 Neelam Sharma 46390 0.00%  - 
3 Enstaserv Eservices Limited 150000000 8.77%  - 

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

17. Other Equity
Other equity consist of the following:
(a) Capital reserve  1,881.03 1,881.03 
(b) Share premium  25,099.44  25,099.44 
(c) General reserve

(i) Opening balance 3,443.95 3,443.95 
(ii) Transferred from retained earnings -  - 

 3,443.95  3,443.95 
(d) Retained earnings

(i) Opening balance  (31,002.09)  (29,763.39)
(ii) Add: Profit for the period (5.23)  (1,232.22)
(iii) Add: Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 4.47  1.04 

(31,002.85)  (30,994.57)
Less : Appropriations
(i) Appropriation/Adjustments  (8.03) (7.52)

(31,010.88)  (31,002.09)
Non Controlling Interest  -  - 

(e) Investment Revaluation Reserve
(i) Opening balance  (229.30)  (992.38)
(ii) Unrealised gain on equity shares carried at fair value 

through OCI
 5,010.16  (494.32)

(iii) Reversal on account of sale of investments  247.55 1,257.40 
 5,028.41 (229.30)

(f) Assets Revaluation Reserve
(i) Opening Balance 13,454.60  13,671.61 
(ii) Addition/Deletion due to Revaluation -  - 
(iii) Reversal on account of Depreciation on Revaluation  203.23  217.01 

13,251.37  13,454.60 
Total : 17,693.33  12,647.63 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

18. Non-Current Financial Liabilities- Borrowings :
Secured loans
 -  ICICI Bank Loan (Lease Rental Discounting) 93.30  326.33 
 -  ICICI Bank Loan  (Lease Rental Discounting) 63.71  162.92 
 -  HDFC Bank Loan (Against Rent Receivable) 1,715.89  1,695.50 

Total: 1,872.90  2,184.76 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.
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 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

18. Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings :
Secured loans
 -  ICICI Bank Loan (Lease Rental Discounting) 15.32  38.76 
 -  ICICI Bank Loan  (Lease Rental Discounting) 8.78  16.60 
 -  HDFC Bank Loan (Against Rent Receivable)  284.27  220.93 

Total:  308.38  276.28 
Notes:
(i) No loans have been guaranteed by the directors and others. 
(ii) There is no default as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of borrowings and interest thereon.
(iii) These facilities are securred by Immovable property (classified under property plant and equipment) 

details are enclosed below. For repayment terms of the outstanding long-term borrowings refer the table 
below:

Name of Bank Amount 
outstanding No. of instalments  Rate of 

Interest 

ICICI Bank (Lease Rental Discounting)* 108.63 

Total 78 Instalments (Equal 
Monthly Instalment) of  
Rs. 1,93,383/- starting from 
05.08.2021, out of which 8 
Instalment has been paid so 
far as at 31.03.2022

7.75%

ICICI Bank (Lease Rental Discounting)** 72.50 

Total 87 Instalments (Equal 
Monthly Instalment) of 
Rs. 1,17,451/- starting from 
05.08.2021, out of which 8 
Instalment has been paid so 
far as at 31.03.2022

7.75%

HDFC Bank (Against Rent Receivable) *** 2,000.16 

Total 77 Instalments (Equal 
Monthly Instalment) of  
Rs. 36,49,590/- starting from 
15.08.2021, out of which 8 
Instalment has been paid so 
far as at 31.03.2022

8.30%

*Secured against Immovable property situated at Chandigarh
**Secured against Immovable property situated at Sector-57, Noida Uttar Pradesh
***Secured against Immovable property situated at SEZ Noida, UP

       Above Loans are repayable in equal monthly installments as follows :

Particulars  As at  
31.03.2022 

 As at  
31.03.2021 

Term Loan
Repayable within 1 Year  308.38  276.28 
Repayable within 1-3 year  697.41  642.91 
Repayable after 3 years 1,175.49  1,541.85 

 2,181.28 2,461.04 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

19. Non Current Financial Liabilities - Other :
 - Security Deposits 245.90  359.55 
 - Prepaid Income 94.93 - 

Total: 340.83  359.55 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

20. Non-Current Provisions :
 - Provision for Leave encashment 26.65  26.74 
 - Provision for Gratuity 108.15  116.96 

Total: 134.80  143.70 

 As at 
31.03.2022

 As at 
31.03.2021

21. Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables :
Unsecured
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 2.93 1.13 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and 

Small Enterprise
103.91 105.99 

Total: 106.84 107.12 

There is no interest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME). 
During the ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, an amount of Rs. 39,810 and Rs. 112,515 was 
paid beyond the appointed day as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 
2006

         The Trade Payables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Less than 
1 years

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

 1. MSME  2.93 -  -  -  2.93 
 2. OTHERS  27.12  10.14 66.66  - 103.91 
 3. DISPUTED DUES-MSME - -  -  - - 
 4. DISPUTED DUES- OTHERS - -  -  - - 

           The Trade Payables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 

1 years
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

1. MSME  1.13 -  -  -  1.13 
2. OTHERS  45.77  3.19 57.03  - 105.99 
3. DISPUTED DUES-MSME - -  -  - - 
4. DISPUTED DUES- OTHERS - -  -  - - 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

22. Current Financial Liabilities - Others :
 - Prepaid Income 18.74 - 

Total: 18.74 - 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

23. Current Provisions :
 - Provision for Leave Encashment  4.01  1.30 
 - Provision for Gratuity 16.14  4.10 

Total: 20.16  5.39 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

24. Other Current Liabilities :
 -  Advance received from customers 56.31  222.36 
 -  Others (Payables) 204.13  237.24 

Total: 260.44  459.60 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

 As at  
March 31, 2021

25. Current Tax Liabilities (net)
 - Income Tax Provision 24.85  60.99 
 - Indirect tax payable and other statutory liabilities 35.45  57.33 

Total: 60.30  118.32 

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

26. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
IT Enabled Services;

 - Overseas 1,983.11 1,697.94 
 - Domestic  671.53 967.60 

Rental Income  807.05 740.33 
Total: 3,461.69 3,405.87 

 -	 Unbilled revenue of Rs. 50.51 Lakhs is billed during the year ended March 31, 2022  (March 31, 2021 
: Nil)

 -	 Amount of Rs. 200.17 Lakhs is recognized as revenue during the year ended March 31, 2022 out of 
Advance received from customer  (March 31, 2021 : 11.26 Lakhs)

27. OTHER INCOME  As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

Other income (net) consist of the following:
 - Interest income  183.43 247.39 
 - Net foreign exchange gains 0.28  - 
 - Other Income 4.59 22.31 

Total:  188.30 269.70 
Interest income comprise:

 - Interest on bank deposits 9.39 12.35 
 - Interest income on financial assets  169.36 230.95 
 - Other interest (including interest on income tax refunds) 4.68  4.09 

Total: 183.43 247.39 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES  As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

Employee costs consist of the following:
 -   Salaries, incentives and allowances 2,177.23 2,002.63 
 -   Contributions to provident and other funds 32.36 27.59 
 -   Staff welfare expenses 40.08 28.63 

Total: 2,249.67 2,058.84 

29. FINANCE COSTS (at effective interest rate method)  As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

Finance costs consist of the following:
 - Interest expenses  222.81 229.87 
 - Bank Charges 5.88  2.53 

Total:  228.69 232.40 

30. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE  As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

Depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment  384.68 456.37 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.00  5.14 

Total:  385.68 461.51 

31. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

Other operating expenses consist of the following:
 - Fees to external consultants  229.45 273.40 
 - Communication expenses 43.70 48.05 
 - Technical Sub-contracting expenses 1.00 -
 - Travel expenses 41.79 14.68 
 - Conveyance 31.24 33.96 
 - Power & Fuel 90.97 91.01 
 - Auditors Remuneration (refer to note (i) below) 12.33  9.93 
 - Running & Maintenance 72.95 65.69 
 - Manpower Expenses 17.45 19.75 
 - Software Expenses 11.88  8.77 
 - Insurance Expenses 14.63 13.14 
 - Rent Expenses 11.55  4.64 
 - Other expenses 59.01 201.01 

Total:  637.94 784.02 

(i) payment to Auditors net of GST, where applicable.
  - Annual Audit fee Incl. Quarterly review fee 9.93  9.93 
  - Tax Audit & GST Audit Fee 2.40  - 

Total  12.33 9.93 
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32. Tax Expenses
Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises;

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Income Taxes Recognised in Profit and Loss:
Current taxes
In respect of the current period 24.85 60.99 
 Adjustments for prior periods - -
Deferred taxes
 In respect of the current period 20.16 14.14

 Total Income Tax Expense for the period 45.01 75.13 

The Company has decided to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 on 20th September, 2019. After 
adoption of Section 115BAA, the Company will be outside the scope and applicability of MAT provisions 
under Section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961. Further, Provision for Tax has been Computed at the rate 
permitted under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2021

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit before tax  39.79 (1,157.09)
Tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense  10.01 (291.22)
Tax Effect of non-deductible expenses 132.04 481.15 
Tax Effect of deductible expenses (117.20) (128.94)
Tax Effect of Timing Difference on Depreciation  20.16  14.14 

Total tax expense  45.01  75.13 

33. Earnings per equity share
The Company’s Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the 
shareholders’ of the company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average 
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share 
options, except where the result would be anti dilutive.

Particulars  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (5.23) (1,232.22)
Profit/(Loss) per equity share:
Nominal value of equity share  1.00  1.00 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic and 
diluted EPS

17,095.53 17,095.53 

Basic Earnings per share (0.00) (0.07)
Diluted Earnings per share (0.00) (0.07)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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34. Related Party Transactions
FCS Software Solutions Limited’s principal related parties consist of its own subsidiaries, associates and key 
managerial personnel. The Group’s material related party transactions and outstanding balances are with 
related parties with whom the Group routinely enter into transactions in the ordinary course of business
Subsidiaries Companies
Name of Subsidiaries Country Holding % as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
FCS Software Middle East FZE UAE 100 100
FCS Software Solutions GmbH Germany 100 100
FCS Software (Sanghai) Co., Ltd. China 100 100
Insync Business Solutions Limited India 100 100
Stablesecure Infraservices Pvt. Ltd. India 100 100

Associate Companies
Name of Associate Country Holding % as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Enstaserv Eservices Ltd. India 48.94 48.94

List of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel
   - Dalip Kumar – Chairman & Managing Director
   - Mahendra Pratap Singh – Non- executive Director
   - Shayam Sunder Sharma – Independent Director
   - Raj Kumar Manikpuri – Director resigned on dated 08.02.2022
   - Sunil Sharma – Director
   - Archana Sharma – Director appointed on dated 06.05.2022
   - Shweta Shatsri – Independent Director resigned on dated 05.05.2022
   - Anil Kumar Sharma – Chief Financial Officer
   - Harsha Sharma  – Company Secretary

Relative of Director/KMP
   - Babita Sharma
   - Utkrasht Sharma
   - Sandhya Singh

A. Transactions with the Related Parties**
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Salary & Other Benefits to Key Management Personnel
1. Sunil Sharma  9.52 9.52 
2. Harsha Sharma  9.36 8.19 
3. Anil Kumar Sharma 21.24 21.24 

Directors Sitting Fee
1. Shayam Sunder Sharma  2.00 2.30 
2. Shweta Shatsri  1.60 1.70 
3. Mahendra Pratap Singh  1.20 1.40 
4. Raj Kumar Manikpuri  0.20 0.20 

Legal & Professional Charges 
1. Babita Sharma  3.90 2.85 
Salary
1. Utkrasht Sharma  4.00 3.99 
2. Sandhya Singh  4.32 3.87 

**Transactions and balances with its own subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
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35. Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 a Corporate Social responsibility Committee has been formed by 
the Company. During the year the Company has not undertaken Corporate Social Responsibility activities 
as there was no obligation to undertake CSR activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 
2013

Gross amount spent by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is Nil

36. Segment Reporting
The Segment reporting policy complies with the accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation 
of financial statements of the Company and is in conformity with Ind AS 108. The segmentation is based 
on the Geographies (reportable business segment) in which the Group operates and internal reporting 
systems. The geographical segmentation is based on the nature and type of services rendered. Based on 
the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108.

The Group has identified two main Geographical Segments as reportable segments. The business segments 
comprise:

1. Indian Segment
2. USA Segment

The Profit and Loss for reportable Primary Segment is set out below:-
For the period ending 31st March 2022
Description India USA Total
Revenue 1,478.58 1,983.11 3,461.69 
Expenses  705.32 1,544.35 2,249.67 
Segment result  773.26 438.76 1,212.02 
Un-allocable expenses 1,360.22 
Operating income  (148.19)
Other income (net) 187.98 
Profit before tax 39.79 

For the period ending 31st March 2021
Description India USA Total
Revenue 1,707.94 1,697.94 3,405.87 
Expenses 1,032.44 1,026.40 2,058.84 
Segment result  675.49 671.54 1,347.03 
Un-allocable expenses 2,774.14 
Operating income (1,427.11)
Other income (net) 270.01 
Profit before tax (1,157.09)

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of 
associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not attributable or 
allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 37: Employee benefits

37.1 Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Contribution to provident fund 32.36 27.58 
Contribution to gratuity 27.16 26.92 
Contribution to leave enchasement 7.10 6.78 

37.2 The Company operates a Gratuity Benefit Plan.
A) Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% p.a 7.00% p.a
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a 5.00% p.a
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age 58 58
Mortality table used IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Notes:
1.	 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Government bond as at the balance sheet 

date
2.	 The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, 

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
3.	 The expected return on plan assets over the accounting period, based on an assumed rate of return

B) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 121.05 105.50 
Interest cost 8.84 7.91 
Current service cost 18.32 19.01 
Past service cost  -  - 
Benefit paid (17.17) (6.14)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (6.75) (5.22)
Present value of the obligation at the end year 124.29 121.05 

C) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 124.29 121.05 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -  - 
Net liability/ (assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet 124.29 121.05 

D) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current service cost 18.32 19.01 
Past service cost  -  - 
Net interest cost 8.84 7.91 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 27.16 26.92 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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E) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year (6.75) (5.22)

 -  - 
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (6.75) (5.22)

F) Bifurcation of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of year as current and non current:
Particluars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current liability (Amount due within one year) 16.14 4.10 
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 108.15 116.96 
Total PBO at the end of year 124.29 121.05 

G) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination 
of defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
a)	 Impact of the change in discount rate
	 -	 Impact due to increase of  1.00 % 112.04 107.98 
	 -	 Impact due to decrease of  1.00 % 138.80 136.63 
b)	 Impact of the change in salary increase
	 -	 Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 138.98 136.79 
	 -	 Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 111.69 107.64 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions 
before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

H) The employer ’s best estimate of contribution expected to be paid during the next year:
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Expected contribution of the next year 5.47 6.00 

37.3 The Company operates a Leave Encashment Benefit.
A) Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars     As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% p.a 7.00% p.a
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a 5.00% p.a

Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age 58 58
Mortality table used IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Notes:
1.	 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Government bond as at the balance sheet 

date



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.	 The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

3.	 The expected return on plan assets over the accounting period, based on an assumed rate of return

B) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 28.04 20.65 
Interest cost 2.11 1.71 
Current service cost 5.00 5.07 
Past service cost  -  - 
Benefit paid (6.76) (3.57)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2.29 4.18 
Present value of the obligation at the end year 30.67 28.04 

C) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 30.67 28.04 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -   -   
Net liability/ (assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet 30.67 28.04 

D) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current service cost 5.00 5.07 
Past service cost  -  - 
Net interest cost 2.11 1.71 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 7.10 6.78 

E) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 2.29 4.18 

 -  - 
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2.29 4.18 

F) Bifurcation of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of year as current and non current:
Particluars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current liability (Amount due within one year) 4.01 1.30 
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 26.65 26.74 
Total PBO at the end of year 30.67 28.04 

G) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination 
of defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.
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Particulars  As at  
31 March 2022 

 As at  
31 March 2021 

a)	Impact of the change in discount rate
	 -	 Impact due to increase of  0.50 % 27.58 24.94 
	 -	 Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 34.34 31.76 

	 b)	Impact of the change in salary increase
	 -	 Impact due to increase of  0.50 % 34.39 31.80 
	 -	 Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 27.49 24.86 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions 
before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

38 Fair Value Disclosures
i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are 
divided into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of 
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity 
specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3.

ii) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

(iii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows:

Particulars Level 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount Amount

Financial assets
Loans Level 3 1,969.02  2,589.58 
Other financial assets Level 3  334.01 266.51 

Total financial assets 2,303.03  2,856.08 
Borrowings Level 3 2,181.28  2,461.04 
Other financial liabilities Level 3  359.57 359.55 
Total financial liabilities 2,540.85  2,820.59 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other 
receivables, trade payables and short-term borrowings approximate their  carrying amounts largely due to 
the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which  the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The 
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 
such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the customer and other market risk factors. Based on 
this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

39 Financial risk management
i) Financial instruments by category

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Financial assets
Investments -  14,392.30 -  8,561.22 - 
Loans -  -  1,969.02  - -  2,589.58 
Other financial assets -  -  334.01  - -  266.51 
Trade receivables -  -  196.54  - -  632.52 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -  296.79  - -  298.33 
Total -  14,392.30  2,796.36  -  8,561.22  3,786.94 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings -  -  2,181.28  - -  2,461.04 
Trade payables -  -  106.84  - -  107.12 
Other financial liabilities -  -  359.57  - -  359.55 
Total -  -  2,647.69  - -  2,927.70 

ii) Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources 
of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the 
financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, 

trade receivables, financial 
assets measured at amortised 
cost

Aging analysis Bank deposits, 
diversification of asset 
base, credit limits and 
collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availability of committed 
credit lines and borrowing 
facilities

Market risk - foreign 
exchange

Recognised financial assets 
and liabilities not denominated 
in Indian rupee (INR)

Cash flow 
forecasting

Forward contract/hedging, 
if required

Market risk - interest 
rate

Long-term borrowings at 
variable rates

Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that 
reflect the market factors

Market risk - security 
price

Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Company presently does 
not make any investments 
in equity shares, except 
for entities where it 
exercises control or joint 
control or significant 
influence.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under 
policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk 
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, 
credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the company. The company 
is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting loans and receivables to 
customers, placing deposits, etc. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying 
amount of following types of financial assets.
-	 cash and cash equivalents,
-	 trade receivables, 
-	 loans & receivables carried at amortised cost, and
-	 deposits with banks and financial institutions.

a) Expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit losses based on the following:
Trade receivables

(i) The company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach, 
wherein Company has defined percentage of provision by analysing historical trend of default relevant to 
each business segment based on the criteria defined above. And such provision percentage determined 
have been considered to recognise life time expected credit losses on trade receivables (other than those 
where default criteria are met).
‘Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

IT & IT 
Enable 

Services

Rental 
Income

IT & IT 
Enable 

Services

Rental 
Income

Gross amount of sales  2,655  807  2,666  740 
Expected loss rate 0.20% 0.20% 0.77% 0.77%
Expected credit loss (loss allowance provision)  5.09 1.60  11.79  8.22 
Receivables due from customers where specific 
default has occurred

-  - - - 

During the year ended 31st March 2021, Expected Credit Loss was calculated @50% based on management 
estimates for doubtful Trade Receivables.

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade 

receivables
Loss allowance on 01 April 2020 - 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to write off/recovery  20.01 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to assets originated or purchased - 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021  20.01 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to write off/recovery  6.69 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to assets originated or purchased - 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022  26.70 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Company provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances other than trade receivables by 
assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since this category includes 
loans and receivables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trend that the company can draws to 
apply consistently to entire population For such financial assets, the Group’s policy is to provides for 12 
month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit losses 
upon significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairment 
recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are 
disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

110

B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and 
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations 
when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed facilities.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on 
the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the 
entity operates. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major 
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet 
liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars 31 March 

2022
31 March 

2021
Borrowings Borrowings

0-1 year  308.38 276.28 
1-3 years  697.41 642.91 
More than 3 years 1,175.49  1,541.85 

Total 2,181.28  2,461.04 

b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity Companyings based on their 
contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

31 March 2022 Less 
than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Non-derivatives
Long term borrowings  308.38  697.41 1,175.49 -  2,181.28 
Trade payables 30.04  76.80  - -  106.84 
Total  338.43  774.21 1,175.49 -  2,288.12 

31 March 2021 Less 
than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Non-derivatives
Long term borrowings (including bonds)  276.28  642.91 1,541.85 -  2,461.04 
Trade payables 46.89  60.23  - -  107.12 
Total  323.17  703.13 1,541.85 -  2,568.16 

C) Market Risk
a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily 
with respect to the US Dollar and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of any of the Company entities. Considering 
the low volume of foreign currency transactions, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is limited and 
the Company hence does not use any derivative instruments to manage its exposure. Also, the Company 
does not use forward contracts and swaps for speculative purposes. 
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(i) Foreign currency risk exposure in USD:

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. are as 
follows
Particulars 31 March 

2022
31 March 

2021
Financial assets  0.23  308.79 
Financial liabilities  6.07  200.17 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)  (5.85)  108.63 

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency 
denominated financial instruments.
Particulars 31 March 

2022
31 March 

2021
USD sensitivity
INR/USD- increase by 100 bps (31 March 2021 100 bps)*  (5.90)  109.71 
INR/USD- decrease by 100 bps (31 March 2021 100 bps)*  (5.90)  109.71 
* Holding all other variables constant

b) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 
2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company is exposed to changes in interest rates through bank borrowings at 
variable interest rates. The Company’s investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates. 
Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:
Particulars 31 March 

2022
31 March 

2021
Variable rate borrowing - - 
Fixed rate borrowing  2,181.28  2,461.04 
Total borrowings  2,181.28  2,461.04 

ii) Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore 
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future 
cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. 

c) Price risk
The Company does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which create an exposure 
to price risk.

40 Capital management
The Company’ s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents 
as presented on the face of balance sheet.
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Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall 
financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the 
Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Particulars 31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021

Net debt  2,181.28  2,461.04 
Total equity 34,788.86  29,743.16 
Net debt to equity ratio  0.06  0.08 

The Company has not declared dividend in current year or previous year.

41. Contingent liabilities and commitments :
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts for the year ending 31st March, 2022 is shown 
below. However for the year ending 31st March, 2021 is Nil

Name of the Statute Amount Period to which amount 
relates

Forum where the dispute 
is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 251.80 FY 2017-18 Appeal to the Commissioner 
of Income-tax (Appeals)

42. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 :
Particular For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid as at year end  2.93  1.13 

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid as at year 
end

- -

Interest paid by the company in terms of Section 
16 of MSME Development Act, 2006 along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during the year.

- -

Interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment but without adding the interest 
specified under MSME Development Act, 2006.

- -

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year 
end.*

- -

Further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest due as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises.

- -
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* There is no interest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME). 
During the ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, an amount of Rs. 0.40 Lakhs and Rs. 1.13 Lakhs 
was paid beyond the appointed day as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act 2006.

43. Classification and Grouping
Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the current 
year’s classification/disclosures

44. Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors on 
30th May, 2022

AUDITOR’S REPORT
As per our separate report of even date

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sanyam Jain	 Shayam Sunder Sharma 	 Dalip Kumar
(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNLQ1735
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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		  Date: 30.05.2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of
FCS Software Solutions Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of FCS Software Solutions Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2022 , the statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred as 
“the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2022, total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made there-under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

(i)	 We draw your attention to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 
2022, wherein the company has transferred the shares held in the company Readystate Infraservices 
Private Limited at a loss of Rs. 107.90 lakhs and the impact of the same has been reported under the 
heading Exceptional Items in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 
31, 2022.

	 Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. 
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We have determined the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated:- 

S. No. The key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Fair Valuation of Investments

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has 
investments of Rs 11,163.46 Lakhs in the 
Equity and Preference Shares of various 
companies (Ref Note No. 6 of Standalone 
Financial Statements) which are measured 
at fair value as per Ind AS 109 read with 
Ind AS 113. These investments are Level 3 
investments as per the fair value hierarchy 
in Ind AS 113 and accordingly determination 
of fair value is based on a high degree of 
judgment and input from data that is not 
directly observable in the market. Accordingly, 
the same has been considered as a key audit 
matter

Our audit procedures included and were not limited 
to the following: 
•	 Reviewed the fair valuation reports provided 

by the management by involving the external 
valuation experts.

•	 We assessed the assumptions around the 
discount rates, expected growth rates and its 
effect on business and terminal growth rates 
used through involvement of the external 
experts.

• 	 We also involved internal experts to assess 
the Company’s valuation methodology and 
assumptions, applied in determining the fair 
value.

•	 Assessed the objectivity and competence 
of Company’s internal / external specialists 
involved in the process. 

•	 Reviewed the disclosures made by the 
Company in the financial statements

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S 
REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Director’s 
Report, Corporate Governance report and Other Information included in Company’s Annual Report but does 
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial  position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified under section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board and Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonable knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone statement 
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e)	 On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken 
on record by the board of directors, none of directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2022 on its 
financial position in its standalone financial statements. Refer Note 42 to the standalone financial 
statements; 

ii.	 The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including 
derivative contracts during the year ended 31st March, 2022;

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv.	 (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

	 (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entities, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

	 (c)	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

v.	 The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Section 123 of the Act is not applicable ;

3.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors Report under section 197(16) of the Act: 

	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provision of section 197 
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess 
of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) which are required 
to be commented upon by us. 

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No. 531388

UDIN: 22531388AJXNAN7355 

Place:  New Delhi
Dated: 30th May 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
(Referred to in Para 1 under the heading ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of 
our report of even date to The Members of FCS Software Solutions Limited on the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022)
(i)	 a)	 (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets.

		  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 b)	 The Company has a regular programme for physical verification of its fixed assets by which its 
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its fixed assets. 
However, physical verification of Property, Plants and Equipment’s has not been conducted by 
the management during the year. The reconciliation of book records with the physical counts 
could not be undertaken. Pending such physical verification and reconciliation, we are unable to 
state whether there is any material discrepancy between physical count and Property, Plants and 
Equipment records.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the 
Company.

	 d)	 The According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including right of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

	 e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending 
against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(i)	 (a)	 The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable.

	 (b)	 The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, 
in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the 
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(ii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or 
security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year except as stated in sub-clause (B) 
below.

(a)	 A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or stood guarantee or provided advances or 
provided securities to subsidiaries and associate.

	 B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has granted loans to a party other than subsidiaries and associate as 
below:

Particulars Loans (In Lacs)
Aggregate amount during the year:-
Loan to Other parties-	
Loan to Employees-	

Rs. 35.88
Rs. 5.64
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Particulars Loans (In Lacs)
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:-
Loan to Other parties-	
Loan to Employees-	

Rs. 1,850.84
Rs. 9.82

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and 
investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the 
Company has not given any guarantee or any security during the year.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment 
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular except loan 
amounting to Rs. 1,850.84 Lacs is repayable on demand.

(d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of 
loans given.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the 
same party.

(f)	 The Company has granted loan which is repayable on demand as per details below.

Particulars Other Parties Promotors Related Parties
Aggregate of loans (In Lacs)
     -Repayable on Demand 1,850.84 - -

Total 1,850.84 - -
Percentage of loans above to the total loans 100% - -

(iii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provision of section 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees 
and security made as applicable. The Company has not given any loan to its directors, hence section 
185 not applicable. 

(iv)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73  to 
Section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or rules framed there under. 
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 
the maintenance of cost records under Sec 148 of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the 
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(vi) Order is not applicable.

(vi)	 a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect 
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, wherever applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities.

		  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess or other statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

	 b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess or other material statutory dues  which have not 
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following 
dues.
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Name of the Statute Amount 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 251.80 2017-18 Appeal to the Commissioner of 
Income-tax (Appeals)

TOTAL 251.80
(vii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year.

(viii)	a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank 
or financial institution or other lender.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, term loans have been generally applied for the purposes for which 
they were raised.

	 d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statement of the Company, we report that no fund raised on short term basis have been 
utilized for long term purposes by the company.

	 e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under 
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

	 f)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(ix)	 (a)	 The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)	 (a)	 Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on 
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of the audit.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints have 
been received by the Company during the year.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company as 
prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the company.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of 



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

122

the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements in Note No. 34 as required by the applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards.  

(xiii)	 (a)	 Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
However, extent of coverage of the areas of operations and the follow up of internal audit 
observations need to be strengthened.

	 (b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under 
audit. 

(xiv)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and 
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xv)	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the  Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)	 The Company has not incurred cash loss in the current financial year. However, the company has 
incurred cash loss of Rs. 580.27 Lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii)	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of 
the Order is not applicable.

(xviii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xix)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount 
required to be spent by the company in accordance with section 135 of the companies act 2013. 
Accordingly, clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No. –531388

UDIN: 22531388AJXNAN7355

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th May, 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of FCS Software 
Solutions Limited 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-sec on 3 of Sec on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
(Referred to in Para 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of 
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of FCS Software 
Solutions Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st 
March, 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures 
that:-

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2.	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and 

3.	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 023685N

Sd/-
CA Sanyam Jain

(Partner)
M. No: 531388

UDIN: 22531388AJXNAN7355

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th May, 2022
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Standalone Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CIN No: L72100DL1993PLC179154
Particulars Note 

no. 
 As at  

31st March 2022 
 As at  

31st March 2021 
[I] ASSETS 
1. Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3  18,480.77  18,926.86 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 255.22 164.20 
(c) Intangible assets 5 14.39 15.39 
(d) Financial assets
   - Investments 6  11,163.46  10,271.91 
   - Loans & Advances 7  1,850.84  1,667.69 
   - Other Financial Assets 8 182.97 206.22 
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 77.56 97.70 
(f) Other non-current assets 10 128.71 97.37 

2. Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
   - Trade Receivables 11 185.31 601.03 
   - Cash and cash equivalents 12 261.03 218.22 
   - Loans 13 68.64 897.63 
   - Other Financial Assets 14 141.57 51.69 
(b) Other  current assets 15 235.99 219.72 

TOTAL  33,046.47  33,435.63 

[II] EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 16  17,095.53  17,095.53 
(b) Other Equity 17  12,836.45  12,696.10 

2. Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities
   - Borrowings 18  1,872.90  2,184.76 
   - Other Financial Liabilities 19 340.83 358.73 
(b) Provisions 20 131.07 140.38 

3. Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities
   - Borrowings 18 308.38 276.28 
   - Trade payables 21
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 2.93 1.13 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and 

Small Enterprise
103.17 104.46 

   - Other Financial Liabilities 22 18.74 - 
(b) Provisions 23 19.93 5.21 
(c) Other Current Liabilities 24 256.90 456.05 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 25 59.65 117.00 

TOTAL  33,046.47  33,435.63 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sanyam Jain	 Shayam Sunder Sharma 	 Dalip Kumar
(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNAN7355
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

		  Place: Noida	
		  Date: 30.05.2022
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CIN No: L72100DL1993PLC179154
Particulars Note 

no.
For the year ended  

31 March 2022
For the year ended  

31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 26 3,431.59  3,366.82 
Other income 27  185.53 267.12 
Total Income 3,617.12  3,633.94 

Expenses
Emloyee benefit expense 28 2,209.50  2,012.33 
Finance cost 29  228.61 232.40 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30  385.68 461.48 
Other Operating expense 31  632.52 677.49 

Total expenses 3,456.31  3,383.71 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax  160.81 250.24 

Exceptional items (107.90)  (1,296.21)

Profit/ (loss) before tax  52.91  (1,045.97)

Tax expense 32
a) Current tax  24.85 60.99 
b) Deferred tax  20.13 14.14 

Profit/ (loss) for the period  7.92  (1,121.10)

Other comprehensive income
 - Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

1 Remeasurement of defined employee benefits plan  4.21 2.45 
2 Changes in Fair Values of Investment in Equities carried 

at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
 150.05 (96.21)

Net Other Comprehensive Income not to be 
reclassified to Profit & Loss

 154.26 (93.76)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising 
Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the 
period)

 162.18  (1,214.86)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 33
a) Basic  0.00 (0.07)
b) Diluted  0.00 (0.07)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Firm Regd. No.: 023685N
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(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 531338	 DIN: 00272803	 DIN: 00103292
UDIN: 22531388AJXNAN7355
		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

		  Place: Noida	
		  Date: 30.05.2022
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Accounting Policy:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or  expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Particulars  As at  As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax  52.91 (1,045.97)
 Adjustments for : 

 Depreciation and amortisation 385.68 461.48 
 Loss on Discarded Assets - 40.48 
 (Gain)/Loss on Sale of investments 107.90 1,255.73 
 Interest income (182.12) (245.01)
 Finance costs 228.61 232.40 

        Other Adjustments - (0.01)
592.98 699.10 

Working capital adjustments:
 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 415.73 (192.12)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances (154.16) (138.63)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (88.87) (29.85)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  0.52 (44.37)
 Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (44.98) 30.39 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities  (198.32) 138.06 
 Cash Generated from Operations 522.89 462.58 
 Income Tax Paid  60.99 80.45 
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES (1)

461.90 382.14 

2. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (232.84) (186.27)
 Interest Income 182.12 245.01 
 Proceeds from sale of investments 140.00 80.69 
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2)  89.28 139.43 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Finance costs (228.61) (232.40)
 Proceeds from borrowings 341.43  - 
 Repayment of borrowings (621.19) (238.04)
NET CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
(3)

(508.37) (470.45)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (1+2+3)

 42.82 51.12 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 218.22 167.10 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 261.03 218.22 
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Particulars  As at  As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents :
    (i) Balances with banks
       -  In current accounts 242.04 198.49 
    (ii) Cash in hand  18.99 19.73 

Total 261.03  218.22 

b. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities :
   Opening Borrowings  2,461.04 2,699.08 
   Add: Borrowing raised during the year 341.43  - 
   Less: Repayment of Borrowing during the year (621.19) (238.04)

Closing Balance 2,181.28 2,461.04 

For Aadit Sanyam & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 FCS Software Solutions Limited
Firm Regd. No.: 023685N

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
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(Partner)	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
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		  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Place: New Delhi	 Anil Kumar Sharma	 Harsha Sharma
Date: 30.05.2022	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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		  Date: 30.05.2022

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CIN No: L72100DL1993PLC179154



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

129

Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CIN No: L72100DL1993PLC179154
a. Equity share capital

 Opening balance  
as at 01 Apr 2021 

 Changes in equity share 
capital during the year 

 Closing balance  
as at 31 March 2022 

Equity shares of Rs.1 each  17,095.53  - 17,095.53 
 17,095.53  - 17,095.53 

 Opening balance  
as at 01 Apr 2020 

 Changes in equity share 
capital during the year 

 Closing balance  
as at 31 March 2021 

Equity shares of Rs.1 each  17,095.53  - 17,095.53 
 17,095.53  - 17,095.53 

b. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2022

Share 
premium 

Capital 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Other Comprehensive Income-Items Total 
EquityAssets (L&B) 

Revaluation 
Reserve

Others 
items 
of OCI

Investment 
Revaluation 

Reserve
As at 1 April 2021 25,099.44 1,881.03 4,596.05 2,904.31 12,944.26  2.45 (34,731.44) 12,696.10 
Profit for the period - -  7.92 -  7.92 
Addition/Reversal 
during the Year

 -  (203.23)  189.41 (13.82)

Other Adjustments (8.01)  -  - (8.01)
Other comprehensive 
income/(loss)

 4.21  150.05  154.26 

TOTAL 25,099.44 1,881.03 4,595.96 2,904.31 12,741.03  6.66 (34,391.99) 12,836.45 

For the year ended 31 March, 2021
Share 

premium 
Capital 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Other Comprehensive Income-Items Total 
EquityAssets (L&B) 

Revaluation 
Reserve

Others 
items 
of OCI

Investment 
Revaluation 

Reserve
As at 1 April 2020 25,099.44 1,881.03 5,724.58 2,904.31 13,161.27  - (35,906.89) 12,863.75 
Profit for the period - - (1,121.10) -  - (1,121.10)
Addition/Reversal 
during the Year

 -  (217.01) 1,271.66 1,054.65 

Other Adjustments (7.43)  -  - (7.43)
Other comprehensive 
income/(loss)

 -  2.45  (96.21) (93.76)

TOTAL 25,099.44 1,881.03 4,596.05 2,904.31 12,944.26  2.45 (34,731.44) 12,696.10 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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FCS Software Solutions Limited
Notes Forming Part of Accounts for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.	 COROPORATE INFORMATION 

	 FCS Software Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the company’) is primarily engaged in 
providing a rage of IT and business services, engineering and product & platform service. The company 
business consists of software development and marketing and providing support services mainly for 
corporate business entities in the BPO sectors, software development, e-learning service and other 
related Information Technology Enabled Services. The company also carries business of leasing 
or letting out all kind of immovable property including IT Infrastructural property whether freehold, 
leasehold to any type of person.

	 The company is a public limited company incorporate and domiciled in India and has its registered 
office at 205, 2nd Floor, Aggarwal Chamber IV, 27, Veer Sawarkar Block, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, Delhi 
– 110092. The Company has its primary listings on the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. 

	 The standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 were approved and authorized 
for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2022. 

2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant amendment rules issued 
thereafter.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

	 These standalone financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (“INR”) which is also the 
Company’s functional currency. All Amount is reported in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise 
stated.

2.2	 Use of Estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management 
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. These estimates are based on the 
management’s best knowledge of current events, historical experience, actions that the Company 
may undertake in the future and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates 
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, 
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

	 The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its standalone 
financial statements:
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a)	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple products and 
services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition 
and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the 
contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under 
the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Company assesses the services 
promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. 
Identification of distinct performance obligations to determine the deliverables and the ability 
of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables, and allocation of transaction 
price to these distinct performance obligations involve significant judgment.

b)	 Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the 
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an 
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its 
life. The useful lives and residual values of the Company’s assets are determined by the 
Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well 
as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 

c)	 Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

	 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations 
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d)	 Provision of Income Tax and 

e)	 Tax Assets

	 The major tax jurisdiction for the Company is India. Significant judgments are involved in 
determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are 
probable of being sustained in tax assessments.

	 Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts, The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those 
temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company 
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income 
in making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, 
however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the 
carry-forward period are reduced. 

f)	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

	 The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past 
events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. 
These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates.

	 The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent 
liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
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be made. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements.

g)	 Employee Benefits

	 The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the 
Company to use assumptions.

h)	 Impact of COVID-19 (Pendemic)

	 The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of 
these standalone financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity 
and going concern assumption, recoverability of receivables, unbilled receivables, intangible 
assets, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue 
recognition and assessment of cost. The Company has carried out this assessment based 
on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of ap proval of these 
standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material 
to these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The 
impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated 
as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements owing to the nature and 
duration of COVID-19.

2.3	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Company derives revenues primarily from IT services comprising software development and 
related services, maintenance, consulting and package implementation, and from licensing of 
software products and platforms across the Company’s core and digital offerings (together called 
as “software related services”). Contracts with customers are either on a time-and-material, fixed-
price or on a fixed-timeframe basis.

	 Revenue on time-and-material and unit-of-work-based contracts, are recognized as the related 
services are performed. Fixed-price maintenance revenue is recognized ratably either on a 
straight-line basis when services are performed through an indefinite number of repetitive acts 
over a specified period or ratably using a percentage-of-completion method when the pattern 
of benefits from the services rendered to the customer and the Company’s costs to fulfil the 
contract is not even through the period of contract because the services are generally discrete in 
nature and not repetitive. Revenue from other fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts, where the 
performance obligations are satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-of-completion 
method. Efforts or costs expended have been used to determine progress towards completion 
as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Progress towards completion 
is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to date (representing work performed) to 
the estimated total costs or efforts. Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts are 
continuously monitored over the term of the contracts. Revenues and the estimated total costs or 
efforts are subject to revision as the contract progresses. 

	 Rental Income comprising of rent and other related services from operating lease is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

	 Advance received for services and products are reported as client deposits until all conditions for 
revenue recognition are met. Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price 
which is at arm’s length.

	 The company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit & Loss Account.

	 The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 resulting from (i) the possibility of constraints 
to render services which may require revision of estimations of costs to complete the contract 
because of additional efforts; (ii) onerous obligations; (iii) penalties relating to breaches of service-
level agreements; and (iv) termination or deferment of contracts by customers. The Company 
has concluded that the impact of COVID-19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the 
nature of the pandemic, the Company continues to monitor developments to identify significant 
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uncertainties relating to revenue in future periods.

2.4	 Other Income

	 Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, gain / loss on investments and exchange 
gain / loss on foreign exchange contracts and on translation of other assets and liabilities. Interest 
income is recognized using the effective interest method. 

2.5	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related 
to acquisition and installation less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All direct 
costs are capitalized till the assets are ready to be put to use, as intended by the management. 
The company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using 
the written down value method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life of Assets Useful life as per companies act
Buildings 70 Years 60 Years
Office equipment 8 Years 5 Years
Computer equipment 3 Years 3 Years
Furniture and fixtures 14 Years 10 Years
Vehicles 6 Years 6 Years
Servers and networks 8 Years 6 Years

	 Property, plant and equipment are being verified by the management at reasonable intervals i.e. 
once in every three years by rotation.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances and the cost of assets not ready to use before 
such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to 
property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon 
sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

	 If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds 
the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided 
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
any accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years.

	 Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’, as the case 
may be, on the date of disposal.

	 Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has 
been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation 



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

134

on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from 
the date of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the date on which such asset has been 
sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced

2.6	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment 
loss, if any. Intangible fixed assets are capitalized where they are expected to provide future 
enduring economic benefits. Capitalization costs include license fees and cost of implementation/
system integration services. The costs are capitalized in the year in which the software is fully 
implemented for use. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated 
useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated 
useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects 
of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required 
to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are 
reviewed periodically including at each financial year end. 

	 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed 
as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future 
economic benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use 
or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized 
include the cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing 
the asset for its intended use.

	 Intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in 
use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets.

2.7	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 

2.7.1 Functional and Presentation Currency:

	 The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupees.

2.7.2 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations:

	 Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the 
relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The 
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at 
the date of the Balance sheet.

	 Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions 
are included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled. 
Revenue, expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the 
transaction

2.8	 Income Taxes

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected 
to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have 



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

135

been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities are recognized for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as prescribed in 
Ind-AS-12. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive 
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax 
losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings 
of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch 
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Company offsets current tax assets and 
current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts 
and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

2.9	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as 
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
occur.

	 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10	 Financial Instruments

2.10.1	 Initial Recognition

	 The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized 
at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured 
at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured 
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Regular way purchase and sale of 
financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

2.10.2	 Subsequent Measurement

a)	 Non- Derivative financial instruments

(i)	 Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows.

(ii)	  Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows. The Company has made 
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an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based 
on its business model

(iii)	  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently 
fair valued through profit or loss.

(iv)	 Financial Liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments

(v)	 Investment in Subsidiaries and others

	 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial 
Statements”. However, the provision for impairment on these investments is recognized 
as per the valuation report taken from the registered valuer as prescribed u/s 247 
of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Registered Valuers & Valuation) 
Rules 2018 is considered in compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

b)	 Derivative Financial Instruments

	 The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets, 
liabilities, net investment in foreign operations and forecasted cash flows denominated 
in foreign currency. However, The Company does not holds any derivative financial 
instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts to mitigate the 
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.

2.10.3	 Derecognition of Financial Instruments

	 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies 
for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.10.4	 Fair value of Financial Instruments

	 The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring 
basis. The Company determines fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an 
asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

	 The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure 
fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three 
levels:

Level 1 - Quoted inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets.

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical 
or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations, in which 
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable in active markets.

Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques, in which one or more significant 
inputs are unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

In accordance with Ind AS 113, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the 
following valuation techniques:
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(a)	 Market approach – Prices and other relevant information generated by market 
transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

(b)	 Income approach – Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its 
present value using the discounting method.

(c)	 Cost approach-Replacement cost method

2.10.5	 Impairment

	 The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The amount of expected 
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date 
to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.11	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 
36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of 
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).

	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the 
CGU.

	 Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment 
loss had been recognized.

2.12	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events 
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These 
provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

	 The Company uses significant judgment to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are 
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

	 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, 
when inflow of economic benefit is probable, related asset is disclosed.

2.13	Employee Benefits
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2.13.1 Gratuity

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) 
covering eligible employees of FCS. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to 
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an 
amount based on the respective employee’s base salary and the tenure of employment with 
the Company (subject to a maximum of ` 20 lacs per employee).

	 Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the year in which 
they occur. 

2.13.2 Provident Fund

	 Eligible Employees of the Company receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined 
benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to 
the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. 
Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited in a government administered 
provident fund. The companies have no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly 
contributions.

2.13.3 Compensated Absences

	 The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both 
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees can carry forward up to 
the specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in 
future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the 
projected unit credit method) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result 
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on 
non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
in the year in which the absences occur. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the 
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

2.14	 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders 
of the Company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year in 
conformity with the Ind-AS-33. 

	 Diluted EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares 
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. 
the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity 
shares are determined independently for each year presented.

	 The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all 
periods presented for bonus shares.

2.15	 Recently issued Accounting Pronouncements

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2022, as below:

a)	 Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment 
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	 The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and 
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing 
the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales proceeds and 
related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any 
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

b)	 Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs 
that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be 
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) 
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is 
essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements. 

c)	 Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments

	 The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test 
of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. The Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

d)	 Ind AS 116:- Leases

	 The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements 
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease 
incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. 
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

 As at  As at 
4. Capital work-in-progress 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

 - Building WIP 255.22 164.20 
Total: 255.22 164.20 

Additional Regulatory Information
(i) The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as follows:

For the Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Less than 1 

year
1-2 

years
2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

Projects in Progress  91.02  100.06 64.14 - 255.22 

Total Capital work-in-progress  91.02  100.06 64.14 - 255.22 

For the Year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Less than 1 

year
1-2 

years
2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

Projects in Progress  100.06 64.14  - - 164.20 

Total Capital work-in-progress  100.06 64.14  - - 164.20 

Movement in capital work in progress:
Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2020 64.14 
Add: additions during the year 100.06 
Less: capitalisation during the year       - 
Less: reversal/(provision) for abandoned work  - 
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2021 164.20 
Add: additions during the year 91.02 
Less: capitalisation during the year  - 
Less: reversal/(provision) for abandoned work  - 
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 255.22 

(ii)  There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original 
plan.

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS: 
Intangible assets consist of the following for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars Software & IPR Total
Cost as at April 1, 2021:  371.91  371.91 
Additions  -  - 
Deletions  -  - 
Cost as at March 31, 2022:  371.91  371.91 

Accumulated amortization as of April 1, 2021:  356.52  356.52 
Amortization expense 1.00 1.00 
Deletion  -  - 
Accumulated  amortization as of March 31, 2022:  357.53  357.53 
Carrying Amount as of March 31, 2022: 14.39 14.39 
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS: 
Intangible assets consist of the following for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars Software & IPR Total
Cost as at April 1, 2020:  368.67  368.67 
Additions 3.24 3.24 
Deletions  -  - 
Cost as at March 31, 2021:  371.91  371.91 

Accumulated amortization as of April 1, 2020:  351.38  351.38 
Amortization expense 5.14 5.14 
Deletion  -  - 
Accumulated  amortization as of March 31, 2021:  356.52  356.52 
Carrying Amount as of March 31, 2021: 15.39 15.39 

We have performed impairment testing of PPE and Intangible assets using various assumptions.  Based on 
the evaluation we have concluded the there is no impairment of PPE and Intangible assets

Particulars  As at  As at
 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

6. Non-current investments 

a. Non Trade and unquoted - Investments in equity shares 
(Carried at FVTOCI) of subsidiaries
1 M/s Insync Business Solutions Limited 50000 

(March 31, 2021 : 50000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- fully 
paidup

 6.26  6.26 

2 M/s Stablesecure Infraservices Pvt. Ltd. 12750000 
(March 31, 2021 : 12750000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/- and 
1010000 (1010000) equity shares @8.90 per shares

 1,364.89  1,364.89 

3 M/s.FCS SOFTWARE MIDDLE EAST FZE 2706 
(March 31, 2021 : 2706) Equity shares of AED 100000/- 
each fully paidup

33,780.46 33,780.46 

4 M/s.FCS SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS GmbH 100000 
(March 31, 2021 : 100000) Equity shares of EURO 1/- each 
fully paidup

21.26 21.26 

5 FCS Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 12.16 12.16 
(I) 35,185.03 35,185.03 

b. Non Trade and unquoted - Investments in equity shares 
(Carried at FVTOCI) of associates
1 M/s Myzeal IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  1900 (March 31, 2021 : 

1900) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- fully paid
 0.19  0.19 

2 M/s.Enstaserv eServices Ltd 8279930 (March 31, 2021 : 
8279930) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paidup.

827.99 827.99 

(II) 828.18 828.18 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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c. Non Trade and unquoted - Investments in equity shares 
(Carried at FVTOCI)

1 M/s. Pumarth Prperties & Holdings Private 400000 (March 
31, 2021 : 400000) equity shares of Rs. 225/- each at 
premium i.e. Rs. 10 per share and at premium of Rs 215

900.00 900.00 

2 M/s Readystate Infraservices Private Limited 23089 Equity 
Shares (March 31, 2021 : 44627) of Rs.1151/- at premium 
i.e. Rs. 10 each per Share and premium @ Rs.1141

265.75 513.66 

3 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 594366 ( March 31, 2021 : 
594366) Equity Shares of Rs. 71/- each i.e. Rs. 10 per share 
at premium of Rs. 61/- and 274285 (March 31, 2021 : 274285) 
equity shares of Rs. 70/- each

614.00 614.00 

4 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 707964  Equity Shares of 
Rs. 113/- each i.e. Rs. 10 per share at premium of Rs. 103/- 
(Refer Note No. 13) *

800.00  - 

5 M/s Heimdahl Software Systems Pvt. Ltd. 100379 (March 
31, 2021 : 100379) Equity Shares of Rs.26/- at premium i.e. 
Rs. 10 each per Share and premium @ Rs.16

26.10 26.10 

(III) 2,605.85 2,053.75 

d. Non Trade - Investments in Preference Shares

1 M/s Bloom Healthcare (P) Ltd. 9916138 (March 31, 2021 
: 9916138) Non-Convertible Non-cumulative redeemable 
Preference shares of Rs. 10 each at premium of Rs. 60/- per 
share.

 6,941.30  6,941.30 

(IV) 6,941.30 6,941.30 

Total Investments (I+II+III+IV) 45,560.37 45,008.27 

Less : Provision for diminution in value of investments  (34,396.91)  (34,736.36)

Net Investments 11,163.46 10,271.91 

*  During the year, the company has invested Rs. 800 Lakhs to acquire 707964 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each at price of Rs. 113/- per share (including Rs. 103/- per share as security premium).

Note: All investments made in unquoted Companies have been fair valued as on reporting date based on 
the fair valuation report from Category - A merchant banker 

Particulars  As at As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

7. Non Current Financial Assets - Loans & Advances :
 - Loans to Others  1,666.46 1,494.77 
 - Inter-corporate Loans  184.38  172.92 

Unsecured Considered Doubtful
 - Loans to Others  708.01  708.01 
 - Advance against Land  200.00  200.00 
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (908.01)  (908.01)

Total:  1,850.84 1,667.69 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

144

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

8. Non Current Financial Assets - Others :
 -  Bank deposits*  89.19  114.47 
 -  Security deposits  93.79 91.75 

Total:  182.97  206.22 

*  Bank Deposits of Rs. 41.23 Lakhs is lien marked, against outstanding Bank Guarantee of Rs. 52.16 lakh 
(March 31, 2021 : 28.36 Lakhs),  as on reporting date which is not free to use. (Refer Note No. 14 for 
current Bank deposits)

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

9. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) :
 -  Depreciation and amortisation  48.43 68.56 
 -  Employee benefits  29.14 29.14 

Total:  77.56 97.70 

The management, based on future projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable income in 
foreseeable future, which will enable the Company to utilize  the Deferred tax assets.

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

10. Other Non Current Assets :
 -  TDS & IT Refund Receivables  128.71 97.37 

Total:  128.71 97.37 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

11. Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables :
Unsecured
 (i) Considered good  212.00 621.04 
 (ii) Considered doubtful  -  - 
 Less: Allowance for credit Loss  (26.70) (20.01)

Total:  185.31 601.03 

        The trade receivables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 Months- 

1 years
1-2 

years
2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

1.	Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Goods

 143.53 10.34 3.44 19.78 8.22  185.31 

2.	Undisputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired

 -  -  - 18.48 8.22 26.70 

3.	Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Goods

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

4.	Disputed trade receivables 
-credit impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  143.53  10.34  3.44  38.26  16.44  212.00 

Less: Allowance for credit loss 26.70 
Total Trade Receivables  185.31 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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       The trade receivables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 Months- 

1 years
1-2 

years
2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

1. Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Goods

 535.89 33.23 23.70  - 8.22  601.03 

2. Undisputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired

 -  - 11.79  - 8.22 20.01 

3. Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Goods

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

4. Disputed trade receivables -credit 
impaired

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  535.89  33.23  35.48 -  16.44  621.04 

Less: Allowance for credit loss 20.01 

Total Trade Receivables  601.03 

        Additional Regulatory Information
       Relationship with Struck off companies are given below;

As on March 31, 2022
Name of Struck off Company Nature of 

Transactions
 Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2021-22 

 Balance 
outstanding as on 

31 March, 2022 

 Relationship 
with Struck off 
company 

IBI Biosolutions Pvt.Ltd. Debtors  - 8.22  Debtors 

As on March 31, 2021
Name of Struck off Company Nature of 

Transactions
 Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2020-21 

 Balance 
outstanding as on 

31 March, 2021 

 Relationship 
with Struck off 
company 

IBI Biosolutions Pvt. Ltd. Debtors  - 8.22  Debtors 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents :
(i) Balances with banks
  -  In current accounts  242.04  198.49 
(ii) Cash on hand 18.99 19.73 

Total:  261.03  218.22 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

13. Current Financial Assets - Loans & Advances
 - Advances to Employee 9.82 27.43 
 - Advances to Others* 4.00  802.42 
 - Advance to Suppliers # 54.82 67.78 

 Total: 68.64  897.63 

*	 For the year ended 31.03.2021, Advance to Others Include Share Application money of Rs. 800 Lakhs 
paid to Bloom Healthcare & Hospitality Management Pvt. Ltd. against allotment of Equity shares. The 
equity shares were alloted on 26/05/2021.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Additional Regulatory Information
# Advance to Supplier includes Struck off Companies, details of which is enclosed below.

Name of Struck off Company Nature of 
Transactions

Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2021-22

Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2022

Relationship 
with Struck off 

company

Hallo Holiday Host Pvt. Ltd. Creditors 
Advance

 - 0.72  Vendor 

Millenium Vacations Pvt. Ltd.** Creditors 
Advance

 - 1.10  Vendor 

Name of Struck off Company Nature of 
Transactions

 
Tansactions 
during the 
FY 2020-21 

 Balance 
outstanding as 
on 31 March, 

2021 

 Relationship 
with Struck off 

company 

Hallo Holiday Host Pvt. Ltd. Creditors 
Advance

 - 0.72  Vendor 

Millenium Vacations Pvt. Ltd.** Creditors 
Advance

 - 1.10  Vendor 

**Under process of striking off

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

14. Current Financial Assets - Others :
 -  Bank deposits*  141.57 51.69 

Total:  141.57 51.69 
*Refer Note No.8

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

15. Other Current Assets :
 -  Prepaid expense 14.60 28.51 
 -  Unbilled Revenue 49.37 50.51 
 -  Indirect Tax Recoverables 17.74 5.42 
 -  TDS & IT Refund Receivables  154.27  135.28 

Total:  235.99  219.72 

 As at  As at
 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

16. Share capital

A. Authorised Capital
185,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up with 
voting rights

 18,500.00  18,500.00 

B. Issued, Subscribed And Fully Paid Up
170,95,53,100 EQUITY SHARES OF Re. 1/- EACH fully paid up 
with voting rights

 17,095.53  17,095.53 

Less : 
Total 17,095.53  17,095.53 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 1/- each. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The dividend, if any as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

16A. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid up held by:

 As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 Number  % Holding  Number  % Holding 

 - Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88% 185916060 10.88%
 - Enstaserve e services Limited 150000000 8.77% 150000000 8.77%
 - SLG Softech Private Limited 118278469 6.92% 220000000 12.87%
 - Prahlad Estates and Properties Pvt. Ltd. 139856970 8.18% 260000000 15.21%

16B. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022 
and March 31, 2021

 As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of 
Shares 

 Amount  No. of 
Shares 

 Amount 

Number of shares at the beginning of the 
period

1709553100 1,709,553,100 1709553100 1,709,553,100 

Add/Less: Changes in number of shares - -  - - 

Number of shares at the ende of the period. 1709553100 1,709,553,100 1709553100 1,709,553,100 

16C. Details of shareholding of Promoters;
Equity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid up held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31st March, 2022
S. 

No.
Promoter Name No. of 

Shares
% of Total 

Shares
% change 
during the 

year
1 Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88%  - 
2 Neelam Sharma 46390 0.00%  - 
3 Enstaserv Eservices Limited 150000000 8.77%  - 

As at 31st March, 2021

S. 
No.

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year
1 Dalip Kumar 185916060 10.88%  - 
2 Neelam Sharma 46390 0.00%  - 
3 Enstaserv Eservices Limited 150000000 8.77%  - 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Particulars As at As at
 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

17. Other Equity
Other equity consist of the following:
(a) Capital reserve  1,881.03 1,881.03 
(b) Share premium  25,099.44  25,099.44 
(c) General reserve

(i) Opening balance  2,904.31 2,904.31 
(ii) Transferred from retained earnings -  - 

 2,904.31  2,904.31 

(d) Retained earnings
(i) Opening balance 4,598.50 5,724.58 
(ii) Add: Profit for the period 7.92  (1,121.10)
(iii) Add: Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 4.21  2.45 

 4,610.64  4,605.93 
Less : Appropriations
(i) Appropriation/Adjustments  (8.01) (7.43)

 4,602.62  4,598.50 

(e) Investment Revaluation Reserve
(i) Opening balance  (34,731.44)  (35,906.89)
(ii) Unrealised gain on equity shares carried at fair value through OCI 150.05  (96.21)
(iii) Reversal on account of sale of investments  189.41 1,271.66 

(34,391.99)  (34,731.44)

(f) Assets (L & B) Revaluation Reserve
(i) Opening Balance 12,944.26  13,161.27 
(ii) Addition/Deletion due to Revaluation -  - 
(iii) Reversal on account of Depreciation on Revaluation  203.23  217.01 

12,741.03  12,944.26 

Total : 12,836.45  12,696.10 

 As at  As at 
18. Non-Current Financial Liabilities- Borrowings : 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Secured loans
 -  ICICI Bank Loan (Lease Rental Discounting) 93.30  326.33 
 -  ICICI Bank Loan  (Lease Rental Discounting) 63.71  162.92 
 -  HDFC Bank Loan (Against Rent Receivable) 1,715.89  1,695.50 

Total: 1,872.90  2,184.76 

 As at  As at 
18. Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings : 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Secured loans
 -  ICICI Bank Loan (Lease Rental Discounting) 15.32  38.76 
 -  ICICI Bank Loan  (Lease Rental Discounting)  8.78  16.60 
 -  HDFC Bank Loan (Against Rent Receivable) 284.27  220.93 

Total: 308.38  276.28 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Notes:
(i) No loans have been guaranteed by the directors and others. 
(ii) There is no default as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of borrowings and interest thereon.
(iii) These facilities are securred by Immovable property (classified under property plant and equipment) 
details are enclosed below. For repayment terms of the outstanding long-term borrowings refer the table 
below:

Name of Bank Amount 
outstanding

No. of instalments  Rate of 
interest

ICICI Bank 
(Lease Rental Discounting)*

108.63 Total 78 Instalments 
(Equal Monthly Instalment) of Rs. 1,93,383/- 
starting from 05.08.2021, out of which 
8 Instalment has been paid so far as at 
31.03.2022

7.75%

ICICI Bank 
(Lease Rental Discounting)**

72.50 Total 87 Instalments 
(Equal Monthly Instalment) of Rs. 1,17,451/- 
starting from 05.08.2021, out of which 
8 Instalment has been paid so far as at 
31.03.2022

7.75%

HDFC Bank 
(Against Rent Receivable) ***

2,000.16 Total 77 Instalments 
(Equal Monthly Instalment) of Rs. 
36,49,590/- starting from 15.08.2021, out of 
which 8 Instalment has been paid so far as 
at 31.03.2022

8.30%

*Secured against Immovable property situated at Chandigarh
**Secured against Immovable property situated at Sector-57, Noida Uttar Pradesh
***Secured against Immovable property situated at SEZ Noida, UP

        Above Loans are repayable in equal monthly installments as follows;

Particulars  As at  
31.03.2022 

 As at  
31.03.2021 

Term Loan
Repayable within 1 Year 308.38  276.28 
Repayable within 1-3 year 697.41  642.91 
Repayable after 3 years 1,175.49  1,541.85 

2,181.28 2,461.04 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

19. Non Current Financial Liabilities - Other :
 - Security Deposits 245.90  358.73 
 - Prepaid Income 94.93 - 

Total: 340.83  358.73 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

20. Non-Current Provisions :
 - Provision for Leave encashment 25.94  26.16 
 - Provision for Gratuity 105.13  114.22 

Total: 131.07  140.38 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

21. Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables :
Unsecured
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise  2.93  1.13 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and 

small Enterprise
103.17 104.46 

Total: 106.10 105.58 

There is no interest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME). 
During the ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, an amount of Rs. 0.40 Lakhs and Rs. 1.13 Lakhs 
was paid beyond the appointed day as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act 2006

         The Trade Payables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 

years
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

1. MSME 2.93 -  -  -  2.93 
2. OTHERS 26.37  10.14 66.66  - 103.17 
3. DISPUTED DUES-MSME -   -  -  - - 
4. DISPUTED DUES- OTHERS -   -  -  - - 

The Trade Payables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 

years
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

1. MSME 1.13 -  -  -  1.13 
2. OTHERS 45.58  1.84 57.03  - 104.46 
3. DISPUTED DUES-MSME -   -  -  - - 
4. DISPUTED DUES- OTHERS -   -  -  - - 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

22. Current Financial Liabilities - Others :
 - Prepaid Income 18.74 - 

Total: 18.74 - 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

23. Current Provisions :
 - Provision for Leave Encashment  3.96  1.26 
 - Provision for Gratuity 15.97  3.95 

Total: 19.93  5.21 

 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

24. Other Current Liabilities :
 -  Advance received from customers* 56.31  222.36 
 -  Others (Payables) 200.59  233.69 

Total: 256.90  456.05 

*Includes Advance received from subsidiary (Refer Note No. 34) 47.21  22.19 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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 As at  As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

25. Current Tax Liabilities (net)
 - Income Tax Provision 24.85  60.99 
 - Indirect tax payable and other statutory liabilities 34.80  56.01 

Total: 59.65  117.00 

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

26. Revenue From Operations
IT Enabled Services;

 - Overseas  1,983.11  1,697.94 
 - Domestic  625.83  912.95 

Rental Income  822.65  755.93 
Total:  3,431.59  3,366.82 

-	 Unbilled revenue of Rs. 50.51 Lakhs is billed during the year ended March 31, 2022  (March 31, 2021 
: Nil)

-	 Amount of Rs. 215.77 Lakhs is recognized as revenue during the year ended March 31, 2022 out of 
Advance received from customer (March 31, 2021 : 26.86 Lakhs)

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
27. Other Income 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Other income (net) consist of the following:
 - Interest income  182.12  245.01 
 - Net foreign exchange gains 0.28 - 
 - Other Income 3.13  22.11 

Total:  185.53  267.12 
Interest income comprise:

 - Interest on bank deposits 8.52  11.92 
 - Interest income on financial assets  169.20  229.01 
 - Other interest (including interest on income tax 

refunds)
4.40 4.08 

Total:  182.12  245.01 

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

28. Employee Benefit Expenses
 -   Salaries, incentives and allowances  2,138.96  1,958.30 
 -   Contributions to provident and other funds  30.47  25.41 
 -   Staff welfare expenses  40.08  28.63 

Total:  2,209.50  2,012.33 

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

29. Finance Costs (at effective interest rate method)
 - Interest on Borrowings  180.69  229.87 
 - Bank and other Charges  47.92 2.53 

Total:  228.61  232.40 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

30. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment  384.68  456.34 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.00 5.14 

Total:  385.68  461.48 

 For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 
31. Other Operating Expenses 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Other operating expenses consist of the following:
 - Fees to external consultants  228.58  270.87 
 - Communication expenses  41.68  45.48 
 - Technical Sub-contracting expenses 1.00 - 
 -  Travel expenses  41.79  14.68 
 - Conveyance  31.24  33.81 
 - Power & Fuel  90.97  91.01 
 - Auditors Remuneration (refer to note (i) below)  11.90 9.50 
 - Repair & Maintenance  72.95  65.69 
 - Manpower Expenses  17.45  19.75 
 - Software Expenses  11.88 8.77 
 - Insurance Expenses  14.63  13.14 
 - Rent Expenses  11.55 4.64 
 - Other expenses  56.90  100.15 

Total:  632.52  677.49 

(i) payment to Auditors net of GST, where applicable.
  - Annual Audit fee Incl. Quarterly review fee 9.50 9.50 
  - Tax Audit & GST Audit Fee 2.40 - 

Total  11.90  9.50 

32. Tax Expenses
Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises;

Particulars   For the Year Ended   For the Year Ended
  31.03.2022   31.03.2021

Income Taxes Recognised in Profit and Loss:
Current taxes
In respect of the current period  24.85  60.99 
Adjustments for prior periods - - 
Deferred taxes
In respect of the current period  20.13  14.14 

 Total Income Tax Expense for the period    44.98  75.13 

The Company has decided to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 on 20th September, 2019. After 
adoption of Section 115BAA, the Company will be outside the scope and applicability of MAT provisions 
under Section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961. Further, Provision for Tax has been Computed at the rate 
permitted under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2021



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars   For the Year Ended   For the Year Ended
  31.03.2022   31.03.2021

Profit before tax  52.91 (1,045.97)
Tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense  13.32 (263.25)
Tax Effect of non-deductible expenses 128.74 453.18 
Tax Effect of deductible expenses (117.20) (128.94)
Tax Effect of Timing Difference on Depreciation  20.13  14.14 

Total tax expense  44.98    75.13 

33. Earnings per equity share
The Company’s Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the 
shareholders’ of the company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average 
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share 
options, except where the result would be anti dilutive.

Particulars    For the Year Ended    For the Year Ended 
   31.03.2022    31.03.2021 

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders  7.92 (1,121.10)
Profit/(Loss) per equity share:
Nominal value of equity share  1.00  1.00 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic and 
diluted EPS

17,095.53 17,095.53 

Basic Earnings per share  0.00 (0.07)
Diluted Earnings per share  0.00 (0.07)

34. Related Party Transactions
Subsidiaries Companies
Name of Subsidiaries Country Holding % as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
FCS Software Middle East FZE UAE 100 100
FCS Software Solutions GmbH Germany 100 100
FCS Software (Sanghai) Co., Ltd. China 100 100
Insync Business Solutions Limited India 100 100
Stablesecure Infraservices Pvt. Ltd. India 100 100

Associate Companies
Name of Associate Country Holding % as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Enstaserv Eservices Ltd. India 48.94 48.94

List of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel
   - Dalip Kumar – Chairman & Managing Director
   - Mahendra Pratap Singh – Non- executive Director
   - Shayam Sunder Sharma – Independent Director
   - Raj Kumar Manikpuri – Director resigned on dated 08.02.2022



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)
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   - Sunil Sharma – Director
   - Archana Sharma – Director appointed on dated 06.05.2022
   - Shweta Shatsri – Independent Director resigned on dated 05.05.2022
   - Anil Kumar Sharma – Chief Financial Officer
   - Harsha Sharma  – Company Secretary

Relative of Director/KMP
   - Babita Sharma
   - Utkrasht Sharma

A. Transactions with the Related Parties
Particulars  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Rental Income    
Insync Business Solutions Limited 15.60 15.60 
       
Salary & Other Benefits to Key Management Personnel    
1. Sunil Sharma  9.52 9.52 
2. Harsha Sharma  9.36 8.19 
3. Anil Kumar Sharma 21.24 21.24 
       
Directors Sitting Fee    
1. Shayam Sunder Sharma  2.00 2.30 
2. Shweta Shatsri  1.60 1.70 
3. Mahendra Pratap Singh  1.20 1.40 
4. Raj Kumar Manikpuri  0.20 0.20 
     
Legal & Professional Charges    
1. Babita Sharma  3.90 2.85 
Salary    
1. Utkrasht Sharma  4.00 3.99 

B. Outstanding Balance Receivable/(Payable) as at year end
Particulars  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Insync Business Solutions Limited (47.21) (22.19)

35. Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 a Corporate Social responsibility Committee has been formed by 
the Company. During the year the Company has not undertaken Corporate Social Responsibility activities 
as there was no obligation to undertake CSR activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 
2013
Gross amount spent by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 are 
Nil.

36. Segment Reporting
The Segment reporting policy complies with the accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation 
of financial statements of the Company and is in conformity with Ind AS 108.The segmentation is based 
on the Geographies (reportable business segment) in which the Company operates and internal reporting 
systems. The geographical segmentation is based on the nature and type of services rendered. Based on 
the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108.
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The Company has identified two main Geographical Segments as reportable segments. The business 
segments comprise:
1. Indian Segment
2. USA Segment

The Profit and Loss for reportable Primary Segment is set out below:-
For the period ending 31st March 2022
Description India USA Total
Revenue 1,448.47 1,983.11 3,431.59 
Expenses  665.15 1,544.35 2,209.50 
Segment result  783.32 438.76 1,222.08 
Un-allocable expenses     1,354.71 
Operating income      (132.62)
Other income (net)     185.53 
Profit before tax     52.91 

For the period ending 31st March 2021
Description India USA Total
Revenue 1,668.89 1,697.94 3,366.82 
Expenses  997.48 1,014.85 2,012.33 
Segment result  671.40 683.09 1,354.49 
Un-allocable expenses     2,667.58 
Operating income     (1,313.09)
Other income (net)     267.12 
Profit before tax     (1,045.97)

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of 
associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not attributable or 
allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

Additional Regulatory Information
37. Ratios
The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:
S. 

No.
Particulars Numerator Denomirator FY  

2021-22
FY  

2020-21
Changes

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.16 2.07 -91.13%
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt * Total Shareholder’s Equity 0.07 0.08 -0.97%
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio EBITDA Interest + Principal payment 1.45 -0.75 220.15%
4 Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after 

Taxes
Shareholder’s Equity 0.03% -0.04 3.79%

5 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Trade Receivables Turnover 0.05 0.18 -12.45%
6 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Trade Payables Turnover 0.03 0.03 -0.04%
7 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Turnover Working Capital 27.94 3.27 2466.14%
8 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after 

Taxes
Revenue 0.23% -33.30% 33.53%

9 Return on Capital Employed Earning Before 
Interest and Taxes

Capital Employed ** 0.02 -0.05 6.41%

10 Return on Investments Income Generated 
from Investments

Total Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00%

* Total Debts represents Total Borrowings
** Capital Employed represents Networth + Total Borrowings
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Note 38: Employee benefits
38.1 Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Contribution to provident fund 30.47 25.40 
Contribution to gratuity 26.42 26.43 
Contribution to leave enchasement 6.98 6.67 

38.2 The Company operates a Gratuity Benefit Plan.

A) Actuarial Assumptions
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% p.a 7.00% p.a
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a 5.00% p.a

Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age 58 58
Mortality table used IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Notes:
1.	The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Government bond as at the balance sheet 

date
2.	The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, 

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
3.	The expected return on plan assets over the accounting period, based on an assumed rate of return

B) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 118.17 104.23 
Interest cost 8.62 7.79 
Current service cost 17.79 18.64 
Past service cost  -  - 
Benefit paid (17.01) (5.87)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (6.48) (6.60)
Present value of the obligation at the end year 121.10 118.17 

C) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 121.10 118.17 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -  - 
Net liability/ (assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet 121.10 118.17 

D) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current service cost 17.79 18.64 
Past service cost  -  - 
Net interest cost 8.62 7.79 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 26.42 26.43 
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E) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year (6.48) (6.60)
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (6.48) (6.60)

F) Bifurcation of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of year as current and non current:
Particluars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current liability (Amount due within one year) 15.97 3.95 
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 105.13 114.22 
Total PBO at the end of year 121.10 118.17 

G) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination 
of defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
- Impact due to increase of  1 % 109.19 105.42 
- Impact due to decrease of  1 % 135.18 133.36 
 b) Impact of the change in salary increase
- Impact due to increase of  1 % 135.36 133.52 
- Impact due to decrease of  1 % 108.85 105.08 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions 
before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

H) The employer ’s best estimate of contribution expected to be paid during the next year:
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Expected contribution of the next year 5.33 5.85 

38.3 The Company operates a Leave Encashment Benefit Plan.
A) Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars     As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% p.a 7.00% p.a
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a 5.00% p.a
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age 58 58
Mortality table used IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Notes:
1.	 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Government bond as at the balance sheet 

date
2.	 The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, 

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
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3.	 The expected return on plan assets over the accounting period, based on an assumed rate of return
B) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation

Particulars   As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 27.41 20.16 
Interest cost 2.06 1.68 
Current service cost 4.92 5.00 
Past service cost  -  - 
Benefit paid (6.76) (3.57)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2.27 4.15 
Present value of the obligation at the end year 29.90 27.41 

C) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars      As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 29.90 27.41 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -  - 
Net liability/ (assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet 29.90 27.41 

D) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year:
Particulars      As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current service cost 4.92 5.00 
Past service cost  -  - 
Net interest cost 2.06 1.68 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6.98 6.67 

E) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year:
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 2.27 4.15 

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2.27 4.15 

F) Bifurcation of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of year as current and non current:
Particluars      As at  

31 March 2022 
 As at  

31 March 2021 
Current liability (Amount due within one year) 3.96 1.26 
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 25.94 26.16 
Total PBO at the end of year 29.90 27.41 

G) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination 
of defined benefit obligations and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.
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Particulars      As at  
31 March 2022 

 As at  
31 March 2021 

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
-Impact due to increase of 1 % 26.89 24.38 
-Impact due to decrease of  1 % 33.47 31.05 
 b) Impact of the change in salary increase  -  - 
-Impact due to increase of  1 % 33.52 31.09 
-Impact due to decrease of  1 % 26.81 24.30 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions 
before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

39 Fair Value Disclosures
i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are 
divided into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of 
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity 
specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3.

ii) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
(iii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows:
Particulars Level 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amount Amount
Financial assets
Loans Level 3 1,919.48 2,565.32 
Other financial assets Level 3  324.54 257.91 

Total financial assets 2,244.02 2,823.23 
Borrowings Level 3 2,181.28 2,461.04 
Other financial liabilities Level 3  359.57 358.73 
Total financial liabilities 2,540.85 2,819.77 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other 
receivables, trade payables and short-term borrowings approximate their  carrying amounts largely due to 
the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included 
at the amount at which  the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, 
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate 
the fair values:
Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 
such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the customer and other market risk factors. 
Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these 
receivables.
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40 Financial risk management
i) Financial instruments by category

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Financial assets
Investments - 11,163.46 - - 10,271.91 - 
Loans -  -  1,919.48  -  -  2,565.32 
Other financial assets -  -  324.54  -  -  257.91 
Trade receivables -  -  185.31  -  -  601.03 
Cash and cash equivalents -  -  261.03  -  -  218.22 

Total - 11,163.46  2,690.36  - 10,271.91  3,642.48 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings -  -  2,181.28  -  -  2,461.04 
Trade payables -  -  106.10  -  -  105.58 
Other financial liabilities -  -  359.57  -  -  358.73 

Total -  -  2,646.95  -  -  2,925.35 

ii) Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources 
of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the 
financial statements.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, 

trade receivables, financial 
assets measured at 
amortised cost

Aging analysis Bank deposits, diversification 
of asset base, credit limits and 
collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other 
liabilities

Rolling cash 
flow forecasts

Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk - foreign 
exchange

Recognised financial 
assets and liabilities not 
denominated in Indian 
rupee (INR)

Cash flow 
forecasting

Forward contract/hedging, if 
required

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at 
variable rates

Sensitivity 
analysis

Negotiation of terms that reflect the 
market factors

Market risk - security 
price

Investments in equity 
securities

Sensitivity 
analysis

Company presently does not 
make any investments in equity 
shares, except for entities where it 
exercises control or joint control or 
significant influence.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under 
policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk 
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, 
credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the company. The company 
is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting loans and receivables to 
customers, placing deposits, etc. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying 
amount of following types of financial assets.
- cash and cash equivalents, 
- trade receivables, 
- loans & receivables carried at amortised cost, and
- deposits with banks and financial institutions.

a) Expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit losses based on the following:
Trade receivables

(i) The company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach, 
wherein Company has defined percentage of provision by analysing historical trend of default relevant to 
each business segment based on the criteria defined above. And such provision percentage determined 
have been considered to recognise life time expected credit losses on trade receivables (other than those 
where default criteria are met).

‘Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
IT & IT 
Enable 

Services

Rental 
Income

IT & IT 
Enable 

Services

Rental 
Income

Gross amount of sales  2,608.94  822.65 2,610.89  755.93 
Expected loss rate 0.20% 0.20% 0.77% 0.77%
Expected credit loss (loss allowance provision)  5.09 1.60 11.79 8.22 
Receivables due from customers where specific default 
has occurred

-  -  - - 

During the year ended 31st March 2021, Expected Credit Loss was calculated @50% based on management 
estimates for doubtful Trade Receivables.

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade 

receivables
Loss allowance on 01 April 2020 - 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to write off/recovery  20.01 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to assets originated or purchased - 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021  20.01 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to write off/recovery 6.69 
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to assets originated or purchased - 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022  26.70 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Company provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances other than trade receivables by 
assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since this category includes 
loans and receivables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trend that the company can draws to 
apply consistently to entire population For such financial assets, the Company’s policy is to provides for 
12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit losses 
upon significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairment 
recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are 
disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)



FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

FCS Software Solutions Ltd.

 Personal Accident Insurance of an amount not exceeding 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only)
CATEGORY (B)
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per
the rules of the Company to the extent these, either singly or put together, are not
taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961.
CATEGORY (C)
The Company shall provide a car with a driver and two telephones and a fax at his residence. Personal long 

by him from his Cell Phone will also be reimbursed by the Company.
CEILING ON REMUNERATION:
The aggregate remuneration shall not exceed the limits provided in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The shareholders’ approval may be sought for authorization to increase, vary or amend the remuneration 

Chairman & Managing Director from time to time, as deemed expedient or necessary during the tenure of 
his appointment.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Dalip Kumar are in any way 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

 For FCS Software Solutions Limited
 
 Sd/-

Noida        Harsha Sharma
Date: 14.10.2019                      (Company Secretary)

162

B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and 
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations 
when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed facilities.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents 
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which 
the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash 
flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring 
balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt 
financing plans.

a) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Paritculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Borrowings Borrowings
0-1 year  308.38 276.28 
1-3 years  697.41 642.91 
More than 3 years 1,175.49 1,541.85 
Total 2,181.28 2,461.04 

b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity Companyings based on 
their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

31 March 2022 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 
5 years

Total

Non-derivatives
Long term borrowings 308.38  697.41 1,175.49  -  2,181.28 
Trade payables 29.30  76.80  -  -  106.10 
Total 337.68  774.21 1,175.49  -  2,287.38 

31 March 2021 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 
5 years

Total

Non-derivatives
Long term borrowings (including 
bonds)

276.28  642.91 1,541.85  -  2,461.04 

Trade payables 46.71  58.88  -  -  105.58 
Total 322.99  701.78 1,541.85  -  2,566.62 

C) Market Risk
a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily 
with respect to the US Dollar and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of any of the Company entities. Considering the 
low volume of foreign currency transactions, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is limited and 
the Company hence does not use any derivative instruments to manage its exposure. Also, the Company 
does not use forward contracts and swaps for speculative purposes. 
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(i) Foreign currency risk exposure in USD:
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. are 
as follows

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial assets  0.23  308.79 
Financial liabilities  6.07  200.17 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) (5.85)  108.63 

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency 
denominated financial instruments.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
USD sensitivity
INR/USD- increase by 100 bps (31 March 2021 100 bps)* (5.90) 109.71 
INR/USD- decrease by 100 bps (31 March 2021 100 bps)* (5.90) 109.71 
* Holding all other variables constant

b) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company is exposed to changes in interest rates through bank 
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Company’s investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest 
rates. 

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowing  - - 
Fixed rate borrowing 2,181.28  2,461.04 
Total borrowings 2,181.28  2,461.04 

ii) Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore 
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future 
cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. 

c) Price risk
The Company does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which create an exposure 
to price risk.

41 Capital management
The Company’ s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents 
as presented on the face of balance sheet.
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Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall 
financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the 
Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net debt 2,181.28  2,461.04 
Total equity 29,931.98  29,791.63 
Net debt to equity ratio  0.07 0.08 

The Company has not declared dividend in current year or previous year.

42. Contingent liabilities and commitments :
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts for the year ending 31st March, 2022 is shown 
below. However for the year ending 31st March, 2021 is Nil

Name of the Statute Amount Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 251.80 FY 2017-18 Appeal to the 
Commissioner 
of Income-tax 
(Appeals)

43. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 :
Particular For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid as at year end  2.93  1.13 
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid as at year end - -
Interest paid by the company in terms of Section 16 of MSME 
Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the 
year.

- -

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment but without adding the interest specified under 
MSME Development Act, 2006.

- -

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end.* - -

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as 
above are actually paid to the small enterprises.

- -

* There is no interest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME). 

During the ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, an amount of Rs. 0.40 Lakhs and Rs. 1.13 Lakhs 
was paid beyond the appointed day as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act 2006.
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44. Classification and Grouping
Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the current 
year’s classification/disclosures

45. Approval of financial statements:
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors on 
30th May, 2022
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